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Date: November 14, 2018

To: Finance and Administration Committee
Dan Mortensen, Chair
B. J. Atkins
Ed Colley

Robert DiPrimio
Dean Efstathiou
Maria Gutzeit
R. J. Kelly

From: Eric Campbell %

Chief Financial and Administrative Officer

The Finance and Administration Committee is scheduled to meet on Monday, November 19,
2018 at 6:00 PM at Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road,

Santa Clarita, CA 91350 in the Training Room.

MEETING AGENDA

1. Public Comments

2. * Recommend Receiving and Filing NCWD December 31, 2017
Financial Statements

3. * Recommend Approval of an Underwriter for Issuance of 2019
Revenue Bonds

4. *  Discuss Authorizing Amendment No. 21 (the Contract Extension
Amendment) to Water Supply Contract between the State of California
Department of Water Resources and the Santa Clarita Valley Water
Agency for Continued Service and the Terms and Conditions Thereof

5. * Recommend Receiving and Filing of September 2018 Monthly
Financial Report

6. * Committee Planning Calendar

7. General Report on Finance and Administration Activities

27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD *« SANTA CLARITA, CALIFORNIA 91350-2173 - 661 2971600 -

website address: www.yourscvwater.com
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8. Adjournment
* Indicates attachments

¢ To be distributed

NOTICES:

Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed
for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning (661) 297-1600, or
writing to Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA
91350. Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation
requested. A telephone number or other contact information should be included so that Agency
staff may discuss appropriate arrangements. Persons requesting a disability-related
accommodation should make the request with adequate time before the meeting for the Agency
to provide the requested accommodation.

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72)
hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Santa Clarita Valley
Water Agency, located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, California 91350, during
regular business hours. When practical, these public records will also be made available on the
Agency’s Internet Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com.

Posted on November 14, 2018.
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&Y WATR  COMMITTEE MEMORANDUM

DATE: November 13, 2018
TO: Finance and Administration Committee
FROM: Rochelle Patterson /%0

Director of Finance and Administration

SUBJECT: Recommend Receiving and Filing NCWD December 31, 2017 Financial
Statements

SUMMARY

To review Newhall County Water District's (NCWD) December 31, 2017 Financial Statement
prepared by Leaf & Cole, LLP.

DISCUSSION

The December 31, 2017 Financial Statement is meant to give the reader a narrative overview
and analysis of NCWD’s financial performance during the period of July 1, 2017 to December
31, 2017.

The auditors gave the report an unmodified opinion, which is termed a clean opinion and is the
highest opinion achieved. An unmodified opinion is the auditor’s judgment that he has no
reservation as to the fairness of presentation of NCWD'’s Financial Statement and their
conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). In the auditor’s opinion,
NCWD has presented fairly its financial position, results of operations, and changes in cash
flows.

The draft report is attached.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

None.

RECOMMENDATION

The Finance and Administration Committee recommends that the Board of Directors receive
and file the attached Newhall County Water District Financial Statement for the period of July 1,
2017 to December 31, 2017.

RP
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LeafsCole, LLP

Certified Public Accountants
A Partnership of Professional Corporations

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
Newhall County Water District
Post Office Box 220970

Santa Clarita, California 91322

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Newhall County Water District, which comprise the
statement of net position as of December 31, 2017, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes
in net position and cash flows for the period from July 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Controller General of the
United States and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risk of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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To the Board of Directors Page 2
Newhall County Water District

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Newhall County Water District, as of December 31, 2017, and the changes in financial position and cash flows
for the period from July 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Change in Accounting Principle

As described in Note 11 to the financial statements, the District changed its method of accounting and financial
reporting for postemployment benefits other than pensions in order to conform with “Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Other Than
Pensions”. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s discussion
and analysis and the required supplementary information on pages 40 to 44 as identified in the accompanying table
of contents be presented to supplement the financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September___, 2018, on
our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

San Diego, California
September ___, 2018



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the Newhall County Water District (District), we offer readers of the District’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the District’s financial performance for the period from July 1,
2017 to December 31, 2017. Please read it in conjunction with the District’s financial statements that follow
Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

The District

Newhall County Water District headquarters is located in the City of Santa Clarita within the northwest region of
Los Angeles County and is blessed with all the beauties and amenities of a large city with a small-town charm. The
District was formed on January 13, 1953 and is currently one of four water purveyors in the area. Water is received
from two sources, District owned groundwater wells and the State Water Project (SWP) via the areas wholesaler.

The District boundaries encompass approximately 37-square miles in portions of the City of Santa Clarita and Los
Angeles County. The District provides treated water to areas of Newhall, Canyon Country (Pinetree), Valencia
(Tesoro), and Castaic. Today, the District provides treated water to nearly 9,800 metered customers through more
than 150 miles of transmission and distribution pipeline, 22 above ground steel reservoirs, 15 booster pump stations,
and 11 active groundwater wells.

Financial Highlights

e The District’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources at the close of the period by $83.4 million (net position). Of this amount, $6.6 million (unrestricted
net position) may be used to meet the District’s ongoing obligations to its customers and creditors.

e The District's total net position increased by $1.2 million during the period from July 1, 2017 to December
31, 2017. This is attributable in part to the reduction of current liabilities and long-term debt obligations.

e The District’s operating revenues were $8 million for the period from July 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017.

e The District’s total expenses were $7.3 million for the period from July 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial statements, which
are comprised of the following: 1) Statement of Net Position, 2) Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position, 3) Statement of Cash Flows, and 4) Notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the District’s assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving
or weakening. However, one must consider other nonfinancial factors such as changes in economic or environment
conditions, population growth, and new or changed government legislation.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information showing how the District’s
net position changed during the most recent period. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.,
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

The Statement of Cash Flows presents information on cash receipts and payments for the period. From this
statement, the reader can obtain comparative information on the sources and uses of the District’s cash.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to fully understand the data
supplied in each of the specific financial statements listed above.

Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, the net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of an entity’s financial strength. In the
case of the District, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
by $83.4 million as of December 31, 2017.

By far, the largest portion of the District’s net position, $76.7 million (92%), reflects its net investment in capital
assets, less any related debt used to acquire those assets still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to
provide services to customers; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
District’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed
to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities.

There were no major additions to capital assets during the period from July 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017.
Statements of Net Position

December 31,2017

Assets
Current and Other Assets $ 11,788,317
Capital Assets 80,691,676
Total Assets 92,479,993
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Amount on Refunding 6,213
Deferred Outflows 995,640
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,001,853
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities 6,546,518
Current Liabilities 3,303,951
Total Liabilities 9,850,469
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows 270,607
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 76,724,489
Unrestricted 6,636,281
Total Net Position $ 83,360,770
4



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Unrestricted net position (which represents the residual balance of total net position after the elimination of net
investment in capital assets) increased by $482 thousand from $6.2 million at June 30, 2017 to $6.7 million at

December 31, 2017.

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

December 31, 2017

Water Sales $ 7,979,956
Taxes and Assessments 314,379
Other Nonoperating Income 63,551
Other Operating Revenues 5335
Investment Income 50,174
Total Revenues 8,461,575
General and Administrative 2,060,064
Source of Supply Depreciation 1,720,306
Expense Pumping Plant 1,695,119
Other 720,580
Transmission and Distribution 326,894
Customer Accounts 267,821

233,097

Water Treatment

Interest E 225,873
nterest Expense 68.693
Total Expenses 7,318,447
Income Before Capital Contributions 1,143,128
Capital Contributions 73,322
Change in Net Position 1,216,450
Net Position at Beginning of Year 82,144,320

Net Position at End of Year $ 83,360,770

Total revenues of $8,461,575 were offset by $7,318,447 in operating and nonoperating expenses.

The District received $73,322 in Capital Contributions from the period from July 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017

due in part to the services installed for the Walnut Park Cottages. It is expected that Capital Contributions will
continue to fluctuate.

1"



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The District’s capital assets for the period ended December 31, 2017, totaled $81 million (net of accumulated
depreciation).

Capital Assets
December 31, 2017

Water System $ 99,686,865
General Plant 13,444,799
Land 9,808,489
Construction in Progress 1,885,942
Organization Costs 40,486
Depreciation (44,174,905)
$ 80,691,676

Noncurrent Liabilities

At December 31, 2017, the District had $6.5 million in noncurrent liabilities, net of current position.

Additional information on the District’s noncurrent liabilities can be found in Note 6 of the Notes to Financial
Statements. Noncurrent liabilities consist of the following:

Noncurrent Liabilities
December 31, 2017

Installment Notes Payable $ 2,833,582
Net Pension Liability 3,316,991
Net OBEB Liability 277,233
Compensated Absenses 118,712
Total Noncurrent $ 0,546,518
Liabilities

Fiscal Year 2018 Budget

Economic Factors

The Districts long-standing commitment to living within our means through both good and bad times has enabled
the District to maneuver through the past drought without major impacts on the District customers. It should be
clearly understood we have not been immune to its effects. The District continues to evaluate the way we do business
and engage our employees to help find innovative and effective ways of serving our customers.

On June 15, 2015, the District adopted changes to the water rate, based on the updated Report of Revenue
Requirements and Water Rates, to become effective July 1, 2015. The rate study took into account a 14% reduction
in commodity sales and developed a Water Revenue Adjustment Factor (WRAF) as a means to mitigate potential
fluctuations in water commodity revenues due to additional conservation. The District adopted Resolution 2015-5
that allows the District to make adjustments to recover any shortage of revenue due to inflation attributed to
fluctuations in real demand and to create a balancing account. The WRAF was implemented at the beginning of FY
2017.

12



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Based on current trends, the District is projecting little growth in FY 2018/19. In addition, the District has assumed
customers (as a whole) will continue to respond to the Districts messages of conservation and efficient use of water
and reduce consumption by 25% (from 2013 consumption). The District has already met and exceeded the
conservation mandates as required in SBx7-7.

Looking ahead, the District will continue to monitor and make appropriate adjustments to ensure the organization’s
financial integrity is maintained, while continuing to meet its obligation to provide a safe and reliable water supply.

Financial

Challenging fluctuations in weather continue to impact local and State communities. Southern California has seen
its share of highs and lows. The annual budget was presented nearly nine years after the most challenging period in
District history. Like many who were affected by the downturn in the housing market and the increasing cost of
goods and supplies, the District has had to adjust its budget to accommodate changing economic conditions. The
most recent recession helped prepare the District to react quickly to changes. We have endured nine years of belt
tightening and cost containment and will continue to do more through this period of drought and financial instability.
We believe we emerged with an annual budget which meets the needs of our customers. It sets our spending and
staffing to affordable and sustainable levels while maintaining a high level of service quality.

Our success as an organization is vastly enhanced by the practicesand policies put in place by the Board of Directors
to ensure the strength and stability of the District. We are fully confident that with these policies and practices,
supported by dedicated and talented staff, we will achieve continued success as an organization and thus assure the
well-being of the people we serve.

Management is unaware of any other conditions that could have a material impact on the District’s current financial
position or operating results.

FUTURE OF WATER GOVERNANCE IN THE REGION

The District has been working with Castaic Lake Water Agency (CLWA) for more than two years to settle litigation
and create a new water governance structure. This process led to legislation (SB 634 — Wilk) that was signed into
law on October 15, 2017 and created the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency — a new water agency for the region.

The purpose of this new agency is to begin to unify and modernize water governance in the Santa Clarita Valley.
Currently, in addition to the District, three other water retailers and one wholesale agency compose a patchwork of
water providers that can lead to redundancies, service inefficiencies, conflict, excess costs and reduced economies
of scale that limit optimized water management in the region. The new agency consolidated on January 1, 2018.

According to a comprehensive Governance & Finance Study (Study), the new agency would save costs — upwards
of $14 million in its first 10 years. It would enhance service by integrating currently disparate systems. It would
create economies of scale to ensure the development of new water supplies, including a regional recycled water
system. It would create a new, modernized water governance structure that is California Voting Rights Act-
compliant and provides an equal voice for all corners of the Santa Clarita Valley.

13



NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2017

As reported in the Study, the District anticipated limited short-term costs in both its FY 2017 and FY 2018 budgets.
These costs are far less than the anticipated litigation that would have advanced if the District and CLWA had not
reached compromise. Overall, the new agency will save the District significant amounts in both the short- and long-
term.

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Newhall County Water District’s finances for
the Board of Directors, customers, taxpayers, creditors and other interest parties. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in the report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the District’s
Financial Department, PO Box 220970, Santa Clarita, CA 91322-0970.

14



NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2017

ASSETS

Current Assets: (Notes 1 and 2)
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable, net
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable - other
Accrued interest receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Assets: (Notes 1, 2 and 3)
Cash and cash equivalents
Total Restricted Assets

Capital Assets: (Notes 1 and 4)
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation
Total Capital Assets, net

Total Noncurrent Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES: (Notes 1, 6, 7 and 8)
Deferred amount on refunding
Deferred outflows related to OPEB contributions
Deferred outflows related to OPEB
Deferred outflows related to pension contributions
Deferred outflows related to pension
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

(Continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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$

6,580,484
2,240,000
1,477,261
59,751
185,674
24,818
794,392
217,717

11,580,097

208,220

208,220

11,694,431
68,997,245

80,691,676
80,899,896

92,479,993

6,213
78,125
19,002

148,353
750,160

1,001,853



NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities: (Notes 1, 5 and 6)
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Deposits
Unearned revenue
Current portion of installment notes payable
Current portion of compensated absences payable
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities: (Notes 1, 6 and 8)
Long-Term Debt:
Installment notes payable, net of current portion

Other Noncurrent Liabilities:
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability
Compensated absences payable, net of current portion
Total Other Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources: (Notes 1 and 8)
Deferred inflows related to pensions

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 7, 8 and 9)

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted
Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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$ 585,527
18,483
23,664
208,220
1,253,840
1,139,818
74,399
3,303,951

2,833,582

3,316,991
277,233
118,712

3,712,936

6,546,518

9,850,469
270,607
76,724,489

6,636,281
$ 83360770



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 1, 2017 TO DECEMBER 31, 2017

Operating Revenues:
Water sales
Other operating revenues
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
General and administrative
Source of supply
Depreciation
Pumping plant
Other
Transmission and distribution
Customer accounts
Water treatment
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):

Taxes and assessments
Other nonoperating revenue
Investment income

Interest expense

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Income Before Capital Contributions

Capital Contributions

Change in Net Position

Net Position at Beginning of Period (Note 11)

NET POSITION AT END OF PERIOD

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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7,979,956
53,515

803347

2,060,064
1,720,306
1,695,119
720,580
326,894
267,821
233,097
225,873

7,249,754

783,717

314,379
63,551
50,174

(68,693)

359,411

1,143,128

73,322

1,216,450

82,144,320

5 _83.360.770_



NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 1, 2017 TO DECEMBER 31, 2017

Cash Flow From Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services
Other operating cash receipts
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flow From Noncapital and Related Financing Activities:
Receipts from taxes and assessments
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on installment notes payable
Interest paid on installment notes payable
Capital contributions
Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Investment income
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD
(Continued)

The accompanying notes are anintegral part of the financial statements.
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$

$

8,607,729

(4,409,473)

(1,057,315)
63,551

3204492

267,991

267,991

(1,405,477)

(870,789)

(70,973)
73,322

(2,273,917)

44,818

44,818

1,243,384

5,545,320

6,788,704



NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 1, 2017 TO DECEMBER 31, 2017

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Other nonoperating cash receipts
(Increase) Decrease In:
Accounts receivable, net
Accounts receivable - other
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Deferred outflows related to OPEB contributions
Deferred outflows related to OPEB
Deferred outflows related to pension contributions
Deferred outflows related to pension
Increase (Decrease) In:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Deposits
Unearned revenue
Net OPEB liability
Net pension liability
Compensated absences payable
Deferred inflows related to pensions
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Financial Statement Classification:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Amortization of deferred amount on refunding

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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$ 783,717

1,695,119
63,551

176,381
76,758
(65,732)
(152,965)
1,719
(19,002)
120,061
(310,840)

29,359
(36,923)
12,874
308,245
37,382
576,273
(34,591)
(56,894)
$_ 3,204,492

$ 6,580,484
208,220
6,788,704
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NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies:

The Newhall County Water District (the “District”) was organized in January 1953 under provisions of the
California Water District Law. Improvement District No. 1 and Improvement Districts 2-S and 2-W were annexed
by the District. The District is governed by a Board of Directors made up of five members elected by the qualified
voters of the District. The purpose of the District is to finance, construct, operate and maintain a water system to
serve properties within the District’s boundaries.

The criteria used in determining the scope of the reporting entity are based on the provisions of GASB Cod. Sec.
2100 “Defining the Financial Reporting Entity”. The District is the primary government unit. Component units
are those entities which are financially accountable to the primary government, either because the District appoints
a voting majority of the component unit’s board, or because the component unit will provide a financial benefit or
impose a financial burden on the District. The District has no component units.

On October 15, 2017, the Governor of the State of California signed into law SB-634, which reorganized Castaic
Lake Water Agency and Newhall County Water District to create Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency effective
January 1, 2018.

Significant Accounting Policies

A summary of the District’s significant accounting policies consistently applied in the preparation of the
accompanying financial statements follows:

Method of Accounting

The District utilizes accounting principles appropriate for an enterprise fund to record its activities. Accordingly,
the statements of net position and the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position have been
prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

The District has not elected to apply the option allowed in GASB Cod. Sec. P80.103 “Proprietary Fund Accounting
and Financial Reporting” and as a consequence will continue to apply GASB Statements and Interpretations.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

14
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NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue Recognition

The District recognizes revenues from water sales and other operating revenues when they are earned. Operating
activities generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods. As such, the District
considers fees received from water sales and other operating revenues to be operating revenues. Taxes and
assessments are recognized as revenue based upon amounts reported to the District by the County of Los
Angeles, net of an allowance for estimated uncollectible taxes.

Investments
Investments are stated at their fair value, which represents the quoted or stated market value. Investments that
are not traded on a market, such as investments in external pools, are valued based on the stated fair value as

represented by the external pool.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Bad debts are recognized on the allowance method based on historical experience and management’s evaluation
of outstanding receivables. The allowance for doubtful accounts receivables totaled $3,598 at December 31,
2017.

Taxes and Assessments

Property taxes and assessments are billed by the County of Los Angeles to property owners. The District’s
property tax calendar for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 was as follows:

Lien Date: January 1

Levy Date: July 1

Due Date: First Installment - November 1
Second Installment - February 1

Delinquent Date: First Installment - December 10

Second Installment - April 10

Management believes that taxes receivable of $59,751 were fully collectible; therefore no allowance for doubtful
taxes receivable was recorded at December 31, 2017.

Inventory

Inventory consists primarily of materials used in the construction and maintenance of capital assets and is valued
at a moving weighted average cost.
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NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired with a cost exceeding $5,000 and an estimated useful life of more than one
year are reported at historical cost. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend
the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as
incurred. Donated capital assets, donated works of art and similar items, and capital assets received in service
concession agreements are reported at acquisition value. Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method
over the following estimated useful lives:

Transmission and distribution 14 - 61 years
General plant 4 - 88 years
Organization costs 30 - 33 years

Depreciation totaled $1,695,119 for the period ended December 31, 2017.
Interest

The District incurred interest charges on long-term debt. No interest was capitalized as a cost of construction
for the period ended December 31, 2017.

Compensated Absences

Accumulated and unpaid vacation and sick leave totaling $193,111 is accrued when incurred and included in
noncurrent liabilities, net of current portion, at December 31, 2017.

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are defined as a consumption of net assets by
the District that is applicable to a future period and an acquisition of net assets by the District that is applicable
to a future reporting period respectively. Deferred outflows of resources include a deferred amount on refunding.
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and pensions are more fully
described in Notes 7 and 8, respectively.
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NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District pays an annual premium for
commercial insurance covering general liability, automobile, real and personal property, cyber liability,
employee dishonesty, excess liability and notification and credit monitoring. The general liability coverage
limits are $1,000,000 per occurrence and $3,000,000 in aggregate with a $5,000 deductible. Automobile
coverage is $1,000,000 with a $5,000 deductible. Real and personal property is covered up to $32,147,642 with
a $1,000 deductible per occurrence. Employee dishonesty coverage limits are $250,000 per occurrence with a
$1,000 deductible. Excess liability coverage is $5,000,000 in excess of underlying coverage limits. In addition,
the District carries commercial insurance for all other risks of loss including workers compensation and
employee health and life insurance. The District also carries pollution and remediation legal liability coverage
with a $1,000,000 limit each loss and in aggregate with a $25,000 retention for each loss.

The District purchased earthquake and flood insurance with coverage limits of $10,000,000 per occurrence and
in the annual aggregate, with an earthquake deductible of 15% per unit of insurance including time element
business income, extra expense and rental value. The minimum deductible for earthquake and flood insurance
is $50,000 and a $25,000 deductible for all other perils. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Other
Postemployment Benefit Programs of the Newhall County Water District (OPEB Plan), the assets of which are
held by the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT), and additions to/deductions from the OPEB
Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined by an independent actuary. For this purpose, benefit
payments are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are
reported at fair value.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that the reported results must pertain to liability and fiduciary
net position information within certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:

Valuation Date July 1, 2015

Measurement Date December 31, 2016

Measurement Period June 30, 2016 to December 31, 2016
17
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NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position and additions
to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported
by the CalPERS financial office. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments
are reported at fair value. CalPERS audited financial statements are publicly available reports that can be
obtained at CalPERS website under Forms and Publications.

GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within certain defined
timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:

Valuation Date June 30, 2016
Measurement Date June 30, 2017
Measurement Period June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2017

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value accounting standards define fair value, establish a framework for measuring fair value, outline a fair value
hierarchy based on inputs used to measure fair value and enhance disclosure requirements for fair value
measurements. The fair value hierarchy distinguishes between market participant assumptions based on market data
obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity (observable inputs that are classified within Level 1 or 2
of the hierarchy) and the reporting entity’s own assumptions about market participant assumptions (unobservable
inputs classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy).

= Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical investments that the investment manager
has the ability to access at the measurement date.

= Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
investment, either directly or indirectly.

= Level 3inputs are unobservable inputs for the investment.
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NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The District’s statement of financial position includes the following financial instruments that are required to be
measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

= Negotiable certificates of deposit are considered Level 2 assets and are reported at the fair value reported
by the counter-party.

= Investments in the California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) are considered Level 2 assets and are
reported at the fair value of the underlying assets as provided LAIF.

Economic Dependency

The District purchases more than 50% of its water from the Castaic Lake Water Agency. Interruption of this
source would impact the District negatively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows the District considers all investment instruments purchased with a
maturity of three months or less to be cash.

Subseguent Events

The District has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition and disclosure through September
__, 2018, which is the date the financial statements were available for issuance, and concluded that there were
no events or transactions that needed to be disclosed except as disclosed in Note 12.

Reclassifications

The District has reclassified certain prior year information to conform with the current year presentation.
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NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 2 - Cash and Investments:

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the District by the California Government
Code. The table also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code that address interest rate
risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond
trustees that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the District, rather than the general provision

of the California Government Code or the District’s investment policy:

Maximum

Maximum Percentage

Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio
Local Agency Bonds 5 years None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None
State Obligations 5 years None
CA. Local Agency Obligations 5 years None
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None
Bankers Acceptances 180 days 40%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30%
Repurchase Agreements 1 year None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20%
Medium-Term Notes 5 years 30%
Mutual Funds N/A 20%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20%
Collateralized Bank Deposits 5 years None
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20%
Time Deposits 5 years None
California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None
County Pooled Investments N/A None

Quality

Requirements

None
None
None
None
None
None

Al

None
None
None

A Rating
Multiple
Multiple
None
AA Rating
None
None
None

The District’s Investment Policy is more restrictive than the California Government Code in the following ways:

« The District shall not invest any funds covered by this investment policy in inverse floaters, range notes,
interest only strips derived from mortgage pools or any investment that may result in a zero interest

accrued if held to maturity.
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NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 2 - Cash and Investments: (Continued)

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy

(Continued)

Cash and investments held by the District were comprised of the following at December 31, 2017:

Maturity in Years

One Year or Less 1-5years Total
Cash on hand $ 1,175 $ - $ 1,175
Deposits with financial institutions 1,589,785 - 1,589,785
California Local Agency Investment Fund 5,197,744 - 5,197,744
Investments:
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 200,000 2,040,000 2,240,000
Total Cash and Investments $ 6,988,704 $ 2,040,000 $ 9,028,704
Financial Statement Classification:
Current:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,580,484
Investments 2,240,000
Restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents 208,220
Total Cash and Investments $ 9,028,704

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates. The District manages its exposure to interest rate risk by purchasing a
combination of shorter term and longer-term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a
portion of the portfolio is maturing over time as necessary to provide the cash flows and liquidity needed for
operations.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments (including investments held by
the bond trustee) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided in the previous table that shows the distribution
of the District’s investments by maturity at June 30, 2017.

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Presented below is the actual rating as of the year end for each investment type.

Rating as of Year End
Standard & Poors

California Local Agency Investment Fund Not Rated
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit Not Rated

The District’s investment policy does not address credit risk for the above investments.
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NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 2 - Cash and Investments: (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the District’s investment in a single issue.

The investment policy of the District contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer
beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. As of December 31, 2017 the District had no
investments (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that represent 5%
or more of total District investments.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution,
the District will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in
the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counter-party (e.g., broker-dealer) the District will not be able to recover the value of its investment
or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and the
District’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial
credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The California
Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units
by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so
waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal
at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial
institutions to secure deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured
public deposits.

At December 31, 2017, none of the District’s deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal depository
insurance limits were held in uncollateralized accounts. At December 31, 2017, no District investments were
held by the same broker-dealer (counterparty) that was used by the District to buy the securities. In addition,
certain financial institutions used by the District participate in the certificates of deposit account registry service
in an effort to further reduce custodial credit risk.

Investment in State Investment Pool

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by
California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of
the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon
the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the
amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records
maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.
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NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 2 - Cash and Investments: (Continued)

Investment in State Investment Pool (Continued)

The statements of cash flows have been prepared by considering all investment instruments purchased with a
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Following is a detail at December 31, 2017:

California Local Agency Investment Fund $ 5,197,744
Deposits with financial institutions 1,589,785
Cash on hand 1,175

$ 6,788,704

Note 3 - Restricted Assets:

Restricted assets were provided by, and are to be used for, the following at December 31, 2017:

Funding Source Use
Receipts from customers Deposits $ 208,220

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted
resources first, and then unrestricted resources as necessary.

Note 4 - Capital Assets:

Capital assets consist of the following at December 31, 2017:

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2017 Additions Deletions December 31, 2017
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land, franchises, and water rights $ 9,808,489 $ - $ - $ 9,808,489
Construction in progress 480,465 1,405,477 - 1,885,942
Total Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated 10,288,954 1,405,477 - 11,694,431
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Transmission and distribution 99,686,865 - - 99,686,865
General plant 13,658,140 - (213,341) 13,444,799
Organization costs 40,486 - - 40,486
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 113,385,491 - (213,341) 113,172,150
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:
Transmission and distribution (37,462,793) (1,309,045) - (38,771,838)
General plant (5,204,318) (385,443) 213,341 (5,376,420)
Organization costs (26,016) (631) - (26,647)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (42,693,127) (1,695,119) 213,341 (44,174,905)
Net Capital Assets Being Depreciated 70,692,364 (1,695,119) - 68,997,245
Net Capital Assets $ 80,981,318 $ (289,642) $ - $ 80,691,676
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 5 - Unearned Revenue:

Unearned revenue consists of unearned connection fees and other contract related costs for the installation of
services and other infrastructure. Unearned revenue totaled $1,253,840 at December 31, 2017.

Note 6 - Noncurrent Liabilities:

Noncurrent liabilities consist of the following at December 31, 2017:

Balance at
Balance at December 31,
June 30, 2017 Additions Deletions 2017 Current Portion
Long-Term Debt:
Installment Notes Payable:
Municipal Leasing Associates:
2007 $ 3027640 3 - 3% (181,490) $ 2,846,150 3 371,188
2009 563,748 - (67,562) 496,186 137,566
Municipal Finance Corporation:
2012 1,252,801 - (621,737) 631,064 631,064
Total Long-Term Debt 4,844,189 - (870,789) 3,973,400 1,139,818
Other Noncurrent Liabilities:
Net pension liability 2,740,718 1,003,753 (427,480) 3,316,991 -
Net OPEB liability 239,851 141,963 (104,581) 277,233 -
Compensated absences 227,702 129,370 (163,961) 193,111 74,399
Total Other Noncurrent
Liabilities 3,208,271 1,275,086 (696,022) 3,787,335 74,399
Total Noncurrent Liabilities $ 8,052,460 $ 1,275,086 $ (1566,811) $ 7,760,735 $ 1,214,217
Debt service requirements on the installment notes payable are as follows:
Principal Interest
Years Ended MLA MLA MFC MLA MLA MFC
December 31 2007 2009 2012 Total 2007 2009 2012 Total
2018 $ 371,188 $ 137566 $ 631,064 $ 1,139,818 82,621 $ 11,088 $ 9,466 $ 103,175
2019 382,407 140,887 - 523,294 71,402 7,767 - 79,169
2020 393,965 144,288 - 538,253 59,844 4,365 - 64,209
2021 405,873 73,445 - 479,318 47,936 881 - 48,817
2022 418,140 - - 418,140 35,669 - - 35,669
2023 430,779 - - 430,779 23,031 - - 23,031
2024 443,798 - - 443,798 10,010 - - 10,010
Total $ 2,846,150 $ 496,186 $ 631,064 $ 3,973,400 330513 $ 24,101  $ 9,466  $ 364,080
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Note 6 - Noncurrent Liabilities: (Continued)

Municipal Leasing Associates, Inc. (2007)

On October 18, 2007, the District entered into an Installment Sale Agreement with Municipal Leasing
Associates, Inc. (MLA). MLA provided $5,500,000 for the purpose of financing the cost of the District’s project.
The Installment Sale Agreement was amended on October 26, 2012. The original 4.5% installment note was
payable over twenty years in semi-annual installments of principal and interest of $209,976. The amended
Installment Sale Agreement is payable in semi-annual installments of $226,905 of principal and interest at 3%
payable in April and October each year and matures October 2024. The Installment Sale Agreement had an
outstanding balance of $2,846,150 at December 31, 2017.

The District covenants that it shall fix, prescribe, revise and collect rates, fees and charges for the services and
facilities furnished by the Water System during each fiscal year (which, together with existing unencumbered
cash which is lawfully available to the District) are at least equal to 115% of the aggregate amount of the
installment payments and all principal of the interest on the prior parity obligations and any additional parity
obligations as they become due and payable during such fiscal year.

Municipal Leasing Associates, Inc. (2009)

On April 1, 2009, the District entered into an Installment Sale Agreement with MLA. MLA provided $2,000,000
for the purpose of financing costs related to the construction of a new administrative facility. The Installment
Sale Agreement was amended June 8, 2016. The original 4.65% installment note was payable over 20 years in
semi-annual installments of principal and interest of $77,342.  The Amended Installment Sale Agreement is
payable in semi-annual installments of $74,320 of principal and interest at 2.4% payable in June and December
each year and matures June 2021. The Installment Sale Agreement had an outstanding balance of $496,186 at
December 31, 2017.

The District covenants that it shall fix, prescribe, revise and collect rates, fees and charges for the services and
facilities furnished by the Water System which, together with existing unencumbered cash which are lawfully
available to the District are at least equal to 115% of the aggregate amount of parity obligations coming due and
payable during the fiscal year.

Municipal Finance Corporation (2012)

On December 15, 2011, the District entered into an installment sale agreement with Municipal Finance
Corporation (MFC). MFC provided $6,986,579 for the purpose of a current refunding of the G.E. Government
Finance 2003 note payable and the City National Bank note payable, resulting in defeasance of debt. The liability
for the two notes has been removed from long-term debt. The MFC 2012 note is payable over six years in semi-
annual installments of principal and interest of $640,530 payable in August and February each year. The note
bears interest at 3.0%. The installment sale agreement had an outstanding balance of $631,064 at December 31,
2017.

The District covenants that it shall fix, prescribe, revise and collect rates, fees and charges for the services and
facilities furnished by the Water System which, together with existing unencumbered cash (which are lawfully
available to the District) are at least equal to 115% of the aggregate amount of parity obligations coming due
and payable during the fiscal period.
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Note 6 - Noncurrent Liabilities: (Continued)

Municipal Finance Corporation (2012) (Continued)

Although the refunding resulted in a deferred amount on refunding of $20,991, the deferred amount on refunding
from the previous current refunding of the City National Bank note at the time of the refunding was $250,712.
This resulted in a total deferred amount on refunding of $271,703. The District in effect reduced its aggregate
debt service payments by approximately $263,718 over the next six years and obtained an economic gain
(difference between the present values of the old and the new debt service payments) of approximately $213,161.
The deferred amount on refunding is being amortized over the remaining life of the refunded debt. The
amortization expense totaled $6,212 for the period ended December 31, 2017 and is included in interest expense.
The deferred amount on refunding was $6,213 at December 31, 2017 and is recognized as a deferred outflow of
resources in the statements of net position.

Note 7 - Other Postemployment Benefits:

General Information About the OPEB Plan

Plan Description - The Newhall County Water District has established the Other Postemployment Benefits
Programs of the Newhall County Water District (OPEB Plan), an agent multiple-employer defined benefit retiree
healthcare plan. The OPEB Plan provides employees hired before November 1, 2009 that retire with the District
at age 55 or older and have 10 or more years of service with the District with 100% of the medical and dental
plan premiums for their lifetime. Dependent coverage may be purchased at the retiree’s expense. Coverage and
benefits end at the retiree’s death.

Employees Covered - As of the December 31, 2016 measurement date, the following current and former
employees were covered by the benefit terms under the OPEB Plan.:

Active employees $ 28
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 6
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments

$ 34

Contributions - The District has been and continues to prefund its OPEB liability, contributing 100% or more
of the actuarial determined contributions each year. For the period from July 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017, the
District’s cash contributions were $20,266 in payments to the trust and the estimated implied subsidy was $3,310
resulting in total payments of $23,576. The District has joined the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust
(CERBT), an OPEB trust administrator and affiliate program of CalPERS, for the purpose of prefunding
obligations for past services.
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Note 7 - Other Postemployment Benefits: (Continued)

Net OPEB Liability

The District’s net OPEB liability was measured as of December 31, 2016 and the total OPEB liability used to
calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation dated July 1, 2015 that was rolled
forward to determine the December 31, 2017 total OPEB liability, based on the following actuarial methods and
assumptions:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Cost, Level Percent of Pay
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.28%
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases 3.25%
Investment Rate of Return 7.28%
Mortality Rate Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for all funds
Pre-Retirement Turnover Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for all funds
Healthcare Trend Rate Medical plan premiums and claims costs by age are assumed to

increase once each year. Increases over the prior year’s levels are
assumed to be effective on the date shown below:

Effective Premium Effective Premium

January'1 Increase January 1 Increase
2016 Actual 2020 6.00%
2017 7.50% 2021 5.50%
2018 7.00% 2022 5.00%
2019 6.50% 2023 & Later 4.50%

Dental premiums are assumed to increase by 3.50% annually.

Demographic actuarial assumptions used in this valuation are based on the 2014 experience study of the
California Public Employees Retirement System using data from 1997 to 2011, except for (a) point retirement
dates used for 3 employees and (b) a different basis used to project future mortality improvements. Mortality
rates used were those published by CalPERS, adjusted to back out 20 years of Scale BB to central year 2008,
then projected as described below:

Mortality Improvement MacLeod Watts Scale 2014 applied generationally

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected
rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and
by adding expected inflation.
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Note 7 - Other Postemployment Benefits: (Continued)

Net OPEB Liability (Continued)

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Return
Global Equities 57.00% 5.25%
Global Debt Securities 27.00% 2.25%

REITs 8.00% 4.50%

Inflation Assets 5.00% 1.25%

Commodities 3.00% 1.25%
Total 100.00%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.28 percent. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed that the District will continue to prefund its OPEB liability, contributing
100% or more of the actuarial determined contribution each year. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected OPEB payments for current active and
inactive employees and beneficiaries. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return of OPEB plan investments
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

Changes in the OPEB Liability

The changes in the net OPEB liability for the OPEB Plan are as follows:

Increase (Decrease)

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Posititon Liability
(a) (b) (©)=(a)-(b)

Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 2,505,359 $ 2,265,508 $ 239,851
Changes recognized for the measurement period:

Service cost 29,994 - 29,994

Interest 90,248 - 90,248

Investment experience - (21,114) 21,114

Contributions - employer - 23,576 (23,576)

Net investment income

- 81,005 (81,005)
Benefit payments (23,576) (23,576) -

Administrative expense (607) 607
Net Changes 96,666 59,284 37,382
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 2,602,025 $ 2,324,792 $ 277,233
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Note 7 - Other Postemployment Benefits: (Continued)

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District’s net OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage-point
higher than the current discount rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.28%) (7.28%) (8.28%)
Net OPEB liability (asset) $ 738,770 $ 277,233 $ (95,650)

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District’s net OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower or one
percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rate:

1% Decrease Current Healthcare 1% Increase
(6.5% Decreasing Cost Trend Rates (8.5% Decreasing
to 3.5%) for the (7.5% Decreasing to to 5.5%) for the
Years 2023 and 4.5%) for Years Years 2023 and
Thereafter 2023 and Thereafter Thereafter
Net OPEB liability (asset) $ (205,862) $ 277,233 $ 989,137

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position

The California Public Employees’ Retirement System’s California Employers’ Retirement Benefit Trust
(CERBT) issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That report may be obtained from the California Public Employees’ Retirement
System, CERBT, Post Office Box 942703, Sacramento, California 94429-2703.

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are recognized in OPEB
expense systematically over time.

Amounts are first recognized in OPEB expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The remaining amounts are
categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and are to be recognized in
future OPEB expense.
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NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 7 - Other Postemployment Benefits: (Continued)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

(Continued)

The recognition period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss:

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on OPEB plan investments 5 Years

All other amounts Expected Average Remaining Service Lifetime
(EARSL) (3.2 Years at June 30, 2017)

For the period from July 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017, the District recognized OPEB expense of $42,363. As
of December 31, 2017, the District reported deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB from the following
sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 78,125 $ -
Changes of assumptions - -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan
investments 19,002 -
Total $ 97,127 $ -

The $78,125 reported as deferred outflows or resources related to contributions subsequent to the December 31,
2016 measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability during year ended December
31, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized as
expense as follows:

Deferred
Fiscal Year Ourflows/(Inflows)

Ended June 30 Of Resources
January 2018 through June 30, 2018 $ 2,112
2019 4,223
2020 4,223
2021 4,223
2022 4,221
Total $ 19,002
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NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 8 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan:

General Information About the Pension Plan

Plan Description - All gqualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the
Miscellaneous Plan of the Newhall County Water District, (All Plans) a cost-sharing multiple employer defined
benefit pension plan administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). Benefit
provisions under the Plans are established by State statute and Local Government resolution. CalPERS issues
publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions,
assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website.

Benefits Provided - CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are
based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. The Plan’s provisions and benefits
in effect at December 31, 2017, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous

Prior to On or After
January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013

Benefit formula 2.0% @ 55 2.0% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 55 52 - 62
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.426% to 2.418% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 7.00% 6.25%
Required employer contribution rates 8.921% 6.533%

Contribution Description - Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL)
requires that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the
actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan contributions
are determined through the CalPERS annual actuarial process. The Plans actuarially determined rate is based
on the estimated amount necessary to pay the Plan’s allocated share of the risk pool’s costs of benefits earned
by employees during the year and any unfunded accrued liability. The employer is required to contribute the
difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. For the measurement
period ended June 30, 2017 (measurement date), the active employee contribution rate is for employees hired
prior to January 1, 2013 is 7.0% of annual payroll with the District paying 1.336% of that amount, and the
employer’s contribution rate is 8.921% of annual payroll, or 12.634% including the unfunded liability. The
active employee contribution rate for those employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 is 6.25% of annual pay,
and the average employer contribution rate is 6.533% of annual payroll, or 6.862% including the unfunded
liability. Employer contribution rates may change if plan contracts are amended. It is the responsibility of the
employer to make necessary accounting adjustments to reflect the impact due to any employer paid member
contributions or situations where members are paying a portion of the employer contribution.
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NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 8 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan: (Continued)

General Information About the Pension Plan (Continued)

The District’s contribution to the Plan for the period ended Decemebr 31, 2017 were as follows:

Contributions - Employer $ 110,264
Contributions - Employee (Paid by Employer) $ 17,615

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability

For the measurement period ending June 30, 2017 (the measurement date), the total pension liability was
determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2016 total pension liability determined in the June 30, 2016 actuarial
valuation. The December 31, 2017 total pension liability was based on the following actuarial methods and
assumptions:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal in accordance with the requirements
of GASB Statement No. 68

Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.15%

Inflation 2.75%

Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service

Mortality Rate Table Derived using CalPERS’ membership data for all funds

Post Retirement Benefit Increase Contract COLA up to 2.75% until Purchasing Power
Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies,
2.75% thereafter

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of a January 2014
actuarial experience study for the fiscal years 1997 to 2011, including updates to salary increase, mortality and
retirement rates. The Experience Study report can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under Forms and
Publications.

Change of Assumptions

GASB 68, paragraph 68 states that the long-term expected rate of return should be determined net of pension
plan investment expense but without reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The discount rate was
changed from 7.65% as of the June 30, 2016 measurement date to 7.15% as of the June 30, 2017 measurement
date.
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DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 8 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan: (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15%. To determine whether the municipal
bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that
would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate.
Based on the testing of the plans, the test revealed that the assets would not run out. Therefore, the current 7.15%
discount rate is appropriate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not deemed necessary. The
long-term expected discount rate of 7.15% is applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund. The
stress test results are presented in a detailed report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be obtained
on CalPERS’ website under the GASB 68 section.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, staff took into account both short-term and long-term
market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Such cash flows were developed
assuming that both members and employers will make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in
all future years. Using historical returns on all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns
were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block
approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits
was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected
return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-
term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was the set equivalent to the single equivalent rate
calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class.

Asset Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years1-10 Years 11+
Global Equity 47.00% 4.90% 5.38%
Fixed Income 19.00% 0.80% 2.27%
Private Equity 12.00% 6.60% 6.63%
Real Estate 11.00% 2.80% 5.21%
Inflation Assets 6.00% 0.60% 1.39%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.00% 3.90% 5.36%
Liquidity 2.00% (0.40%) (0.90%)
100.00%
33
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 8 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan: (Continued)

Allocation of Net Pension Liability and Pension Expense to Individual Emplovyers

The following table shows the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability over the measurement
period.
Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension

Liability Net Pension Liability
(@) (b) () =(a)-(b)
Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 12,753,176 $ 10,012,458 $ 2,740,718
Balance at June 30, 2017 14,615,100 11,298,109 3,316,991
Net Changes During 2016 - 2017 $ 1,861,924 $ 1,285,651 $ 576,273

The net pension liability of the plan is measured as of December 31, 2017, and the total pension liability for the
plan used to calculate the net pension liabilities was determined by an actuarial valuation of June 30, 2016 rolled
forward to June 30, 2017 using standard update procedures. The proportion of the net pension liability was
based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. The District’s proportionate share
of the net pension liability for the plan as of June 30, 2017 and Decemebr 31, 2017 was as follows:

Miscellaneous

Proportion - June 30, 2016 0.088580%
Proportion - June 30, 2017 0.091250%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.002670%

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the Plan as of the Measurement Date, calculated using the
discount rate of 7.15%, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (6.15%) or 1 percentage-point higher (8.15%) than the current rate:

Discount Rate Current Discount Discount Rate
-1% (6.15%) Rate (7.15%) +1% (8.15%)
Plan’s Net Pension Liability $ 5,327,252 $ 3,316,991 $ 1,652,056
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Note 8 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan: (Continued)

Amortization of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Under GASB 68, actuarial gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability and fiduciary net position
are recognized in pension expense systematically over time.

The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The
remaining amounts are categorized as deferred inflows and deferred outflows to be recognized in future pension
expense.

The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss:

Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investment 5 year straight-line amortization

All other amounts Straight-line amortization over the expected
remaining service lifetime (EARSL) of all
members that are provided with pensions
(active, inactive, and retired) as of the
beginning of the measurement period

The Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings on Pension Plan Investments is
amortized over a five-year period on a straight-line basis. One-fifth is recognized in pension expense during the
measurement period, and the remaining Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings on
Pension Plan Investments at the measurement date is to be amortized over the remaining four-year period. The
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings on Pension Plan Investments in the schedule
of Collective Pension Amounts represents the unamortized balance relating to the current measurement period
and the prior measurement period on a net basis.

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources relating to Differences Between Expected and
Actual Experience, Changes of Assumptions and employer-specific amounts should be amortized over the
EARSL of members provided with pensions through the Plan. The EARSL for the Plan for the June 30, 2017
measurement date is 3.8 years, which was obtained by dividing the total service years by the total number of
participants (active, inactive, and retired) in the Plan. Inactive employees and retirees have remaining service
lifetimes equal to 0. Total future service is based on the members’ probability of decrementing due to an event
other than receiving a cash refund.
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Note 8 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan: (Continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the period ended December 31, 2017, the District recognized a pension expense of $476,953 for the Plan.
As of December 31, 2017, the District reports deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions as follows:

Deferred Outflow Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to the measurement date $ 148,353 $
Differences between actual contributions made and proportionate share of
contributions - 205,103
Differences between expected and actual experience - 65,504
Changes of assumptions 563,354 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan
investments 137,924
Adjustment due to difference in proportions 48,882 -

Total $ 898,513 $ 270,607

The $148,353 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement
date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension-liability in the period ended December 31, 2017. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources in the previous chart will be recognized
in future pension expense as follows:

Deferred
Measurement Year Outflows/(Inflows)
Ended June 30 of Resources
January 2018 through June30, 2018 $ -
2019 31,084
2020 332,521
2021 197,838
2022 (81,889)
Total $ 479,554

Note 9 - Contingencies:

In the opinion of District counsel and management, the District had no material claims which would require loss
provision in the financial statements at December 31, 2017.
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Note 10 - New Governmental Accounting Standards:

GASB No. 75

In June 2015, the Government Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 75, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions”. This Statement is effective for financial
statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017. Earlier application is encouraged. The effects of this
pronouncement on the financial statements of the District are more fully described in Note 11.

GASB No. 81

In March 2016, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 81, “Irrevocable Split-
Interest Agreements”. The requirements of this Pronouncement are effective for financial statements for period
beginning after December 15, 2016, and should be applied retroactively. Earlier application is encouraged. This
pronouncement did not have a material effect on the financial statements of the District in the period of
implementation.

GASB No. 82

In March 2016, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 82, “Pension Issues - an
amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73”. The requirements of this Pronouncement are
effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016, except for the requirements of this Statement for
the selection of assumptions in a circumstance in which an employer’s pension liability is measured as of a date
other than the employer’s most recent fiscal year-end. In that circumstance, the requirements for the selection
of assumptions are effective for that employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of the
pension liability is on or after June 15, 2017. Earlier application is encouraged. This pronouncement did not
have a material effect on the financial statements of the District in the period of implementation.

GASB No. 83

In November 2016, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 83 “ Certain Asset
Retirement Obligations”. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after
June 15, 2018. Earlier Application is encouraged. The District has not determined the effects of this
pronouncement on the financial statements of the District in the year of implementation.

GASB No. 84

In January 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 84 “Fiduciary Activities”.
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.
Earlier Application is encouraged. The District has not determined the effects of this pronouncement on the
financial statements of the District in the year of implementation.
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Note 10 - New Governmental Accounting Standards: (Continued)

GASB No. 85

In March 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 85 “Omnibus 2017”. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. This
pronouncement did not have a material effect on the financial statements of the District in the period of
implementation.

GASB No. 86

In May 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 86 “Certain Debt
Extinguishment Issues”. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2017. Earlier Application is encouraged. The District has not determined the effects of this
pronouncement on the financial statements of the District in the year of implementation.

GASB No. 87

In June 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 87 “Leases”. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The
District has not determined the effects of this pronouncement on the financial statements of the District in the
year of implementation.

GASB No. 88

In April 2018, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 88 “Certain Disclosures
Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements”. The requirements of this Statement are
effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Earlier application is encouraged. The District
has not yet determined the effects of this pronouncement on the financial statements of the District in the year
of implementation.

Note 11- Change in Accounting Principle:

Effective July 1, 2017, the District changed its method of accounting for other postemployment benefits other than
pensions and the related OPEB expense as well any deferred inflows and deferred outflows of resources in order to
conform with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75, “Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions”.
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Note 11- Change in Accounting Principle: (Continued)

This statement requires the liability of employers and nonemployer contributing entities to employees for defined
benefit OPEB (net OPEB liability) to be measured as the portion of the present value of projected benefit payments
to be provided to current active and inactive employees that is attributed to those employees past periods of service
(total OPEB liability), less the amount of the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position. As a result, the District recorded
the following net OPEB obligation and deferred outflow of resources resulting in a reduction in net position reported
at June 30, 2017:

Net OPEB obligation $  (239,851)
Deferred outflows related to OPEB contributions 79,844
Net Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle (160,007)
Net Position as Originally Stated 82,304,327
Net Position as Restated $ 82,144,320

Note 12 - Subsequent Event:

On October 15, 2017, the Governor of the State of California signed into law SB-634, which reorganized Castaic
Lake Water Agency and Newhall County Water District to create Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (New
Agency). The agreement creating this New Agency will be effective January 1, 2018.
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NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 1, 2017 TO DECEMBER 31, 2017

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE DISTRICT’S NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
LAST TEN YEARS *

2018

Total OPEB Liability
Service cost $ 29,994
Interest 90,248
Change of benefit terms -
Differences between expected and actual experience -
Changes of assumptions -
Benefit payments (23,576)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability 96,666
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 2,505,359
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a) $ 2,602,025
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - Employer $ 23,576
Net investment income 59,891
Benefit payments (23,576)
Administrative expense (607)
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 59,284
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 2,265,508
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b) $ 2,324,792
District’s Net OPEB Liability - Ending (a) - (b) $ 277,233
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the

Total OPEB Liability 89.35%
Covered-Employee Payroll $ 1,130,833
District’s Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage of

Covered-Employee Payroll 24.52%

Notes to Schedules:

Changes in assumptions - None

* Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation. The District must eventually disclose a 10-year history of
the schedule of changes in net OPEB liability and related ratios.
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NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 1, 2017 TO DECEMBER 31, 2017

SCHEDULE OF OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS
LAST TEN YEARS*

2018

Actuarial Determined Contribution (ADC) $ 35,264
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially

Determined Contribution 21,857
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ 13,407
Covered-Employee Payroll $ 1,060,763
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-

Employee Payroll 2.06%

Notes to Schedules:

The ADC developed for the District’s short fiscal year ending December 31, 2017 was determined and presented
in the July 2015 Actuarial Valuation report. Expected contributions, relative to the ADC, for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2017 are shown above.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method

Amortization Period

Asset Valuation Method

Inflation

Investment Rate of Return

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

Salary Increase
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Entry age

Level percentage of payroll
Closed

Market Value

2.75 percent

7.28% per annum. Assumes investing in California
Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust asset allocation

strategy 1.

7.5 percent initial, decreasing an ultimate rate of 4.5

percent for the years 2023 and thereafter

3.25% per year



NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 1, 2017 TO DECEMBER 31, 2017

SCHEDULE OF OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS (CONTINUED)
LAST TEN YEARS*

Noes to Schedules: (Continued)

Valuation Date: (Continued)

Retirement Age Coverage is available for employees hired before November 1,
2009 that retire with the District at age 55 or older and have 10 or
more years of service with the District.

Mortality Demographic actuarial assumptions used in this valuation are
based on the 2014 experience study of the California Public
Employees Retirement System using data from 1997 to 2011,
except for (a) point retirement dates used for 3 employees and
(b) a different basis used to project future mortality
improvements. Rates for selected age and service are shown
below and on the following pages. Mortality rates used were
those published by CalPERS, adjusted to back out 20 years of
Scale BB to central year 2008, then projected as described
below:

Mortality Improvement  MacLeod Watts Scale 2014 applied
generationally

* Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation. The District must eventually disclose a 10-year history of
the contributing investment return, and payroll schedules.
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NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 1, 2017 TO DECEMBER 31, 2017

SCHEDULE OF PLAN’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIANILITY

LAST TEN YEARS*

Proportion of the Collective Net Pension Liability
Proportionate Share of the Collective Net Pension Liability
Covered-Employee Payroll

Proportionate Share of the Collective Net Pension Liability
as Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total
Pension Liability

Notes to Schedules:

Measurement
Date

Measurement
Date

Measurement Measurement
Date Date

June 30, 2017

June 30, 2016

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

0.091250%
3,316,991

2,276,893

145.68%

77.30%

0.088580%
2,740,718

2,581,137

106.18%

78.51%

0.072096% 0.075913%
1,977,917 1,876,184
2,376,060 2,372,536

83.24% 79.08%
84.27% 84.71%

Benefit Changes - The figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from plan changes
which occurred after the June 30, 2014 valuation date. This applies for voluntary benefit changes as well as any
offers of Two Years Additional Service Credit (aka Golden Handshakes).

Changes in Assumptions - The discount rate was changed from 7.65 percent as of the June 30, 2016 measurement
date to 7.15 percent as of the June 30, 2017 measurement date.

*Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only four years are shown.
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NEWHALL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 1, 2017 TO DECEMBER 31, 2017

SCHEDULE OF PLAN’S CONTRIBUTIONS
LAST TEN YEARS*

Actuarial Determined Contribution

Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Determined

Contributions

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

Covered Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-Employee

Payroll

Notes to Schedules:

Fiscal Year End
Valuation Date

Period from July 1, 2017

to December 31, 2017
June 30, 2016

Period From
July 1, 2017
To
December 31, Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2017 2016 - 2017 2015 - 2016 2014 - 2015
$ 148,353 % 268,414 $ 246,839 $ 224,036
148,353 268,414 246,839 224,036
$ - $ - $ - $ -
$ N/A $ 2276893 $ 2,581,137 $ 2,376,060
N/A 11.79% 9.56% 9.43%

June 30, 2017
June 30, 2014

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Asset Valuation Method
Discount Rate

Projected Salary Increase

Inflation
Payroll Growth
Individual Salary Growth

Entry Age

Level Percent of Payroll
Market Value

7.15%

3.30% to 14.20% depending
on Age, Service, and type of
employment

2.75%

3.00%

A merit scale varying by
duration of employment
coupled with an assumed
annual production inflation
growth of 0.25%

Entry Age

Level Percent of Payroll
Market Value

7.50%

3.30% to 14.20% depending
on Age, Service, and type of
employment

2.75%

3.00%

A merit scale varying by
duration of employment
coupled with an assumed
annual production inflation
growth of 0.25%

June 30, 2016
June 30, 2013

Entry Age

Level Percent of Payroll
Market Value

7.50%

3.30% to 14.20% depending
on Age, Service, and type of
employment

2.75%

3.00%

A merit scale varying by
duration of employment
coupled with an assumed
annual production inflation
growth of 0.25%

*Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation; therefore, only four years are shown.
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June 30, 2015
June 30, 2012

Entry Age

Level Percent of Payroll
Market Value

7.50%

3.30% to 14.20% depending
on Age, Service, and type of
employment

2.75%

3.00%

A merit scale varying by
duration of employment
coupled with an assumed
annual production inflation
growth of 0.25%



LeafsCole, LLP

Certified Public Accountants
A Partnership of Professional Corporations

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
Newhall County Water District

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and

the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller

General of the United States, the financial statements of Newhall County Water District, as of and for the six month

period ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the

Newhall County Water District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September
, 2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Newhall County Water District’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Newhall County Water District’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Newhall County Water District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this selection
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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To the Board of Directors Page 2
Newhall County Water District

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Newhall County Water District’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

San Diego, California
September ___, 2018
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&Y WATR  COMMITTEE MEMORANDUM

DATE: November 13, 2018
TO: Finance and Administration Committee
FROM: Eric Campbell

Chief Financial and Administrative Officer

SUBJECT: Recommend Approval of an Underwriter for Issuance of 2019 Revenue Bonds

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION

The Agency anticipates offering Tax-exempt Bonds to fund capital improvement projects in the
amount of $35 million. For SCV Water to consider the approval of the financing plan and
underwriter for the Agency’s anticipated issuance of 2019 Revenue Bonds, an RFP was issued
to three underwriting firms (Attachment 1).

The duties of the underwriter are to assist the Agency and its finance team, Fieldman, as the
financial advisor and Stradling as Bond Counsel, to prepare the transaction for sale to investors.
The underwriter provides investor sentiments and preferences to aid in the legal and credit
structure of the transaction and market intelligence related to pricing matters up until the actual
pricing of the bonds (Financing plan). The underwriter conducts its due diligence with respect to
the disclosure document and offers the bonds to investors and agrees to buy the bonds from the
Agency.

The Agency anticipates offering the 2019 Bonds through its joint powers authority (Upper Santa
Clara Valley JPA) and as parity debt to the Agency’s existing obligations secured by its
wholesale system.

The proposals were very competitive in response, qualifications and fees. Responses were
received from Citigroup Global Markets (Citi) (Attachment 2), J.P. Morgan (Attachment 3) and
Wells Fargo Bank (WFB) (Attachment 4). Each firm provided a complete proposal.

Citi scored the highest of the three firms based upon responses to the questions, fees, overall
guality and clarity of the proposal. Citi had the overall lowest fee, slightly lower than JP Morgan
($1,610 differential) as shown in Table 1. Citi has one of the most respected sale forces in the
industry and demonstrated in its proposal the willingness to commit its capital at the time of
pricing to purchase municipal bonds. Citi assigned a banking team of five experienced
individuals and two municipal underwriters to the transaction.
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Table 1 Fee Summary Average Underwriter's All-In Gross
Underwriter Takedown* Expenses* Spread*
CITIGROUP GLOBAL

MARKETS $1.53 $0.707 $2.234**
JP MORGAN $1.25 $1.030 $2.280
WELLS FARGO SECURITIES $2.00 $0.740 $2.740

*Per $1,000 of bonds
**The cost differential between JP Morgan and Citigroup ($2.280 - $2.234) for a $35 million
bond issue is minor $1,610.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

None at this time.

RECOMMENDATION

The Finance and Administration Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approve
Citigroup Global Markets to prepare a financing plan and act as the underwriter for the Agency’s
anticipated issuance of the 2019 Revenue Bonds.

EC

Attachments
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::_ HELDMEN &RQ,!?E&EF ATTACHMENT 1

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY
Series 2019 Revenue Bonds
$32 - $36 Million Par Amount

Request for Proposals for
Investment Banking / Underwriting Services

On behalf of Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, (the “Agency”), we are distributing this Request for
Proposals for investment banking/underwriting services for the Agency’s anticipated issuance of
2019 Revenue Bonds (the “2019 Bonds”). The Agency anticipates offering the 2019 Bonds through
its joint powers authority (Upper Santa Clara Valley JPA) and as parity debt to the Agency’s existing
obligations secured by its wholesale system.

Submittal information:
Responses are to be delivered electronically to Mr. Eric Campbell, Chief Financial and
Administrative Officer of the Agency, and Robert Porr of Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates no later

than 5:00 PM pacific time on Wednesday, November 14, 2018.

Eric Campbell ecampbell@scvwa.org
Robert Porr rporr@fieldman.com

Responses should be no more than ten pages including any appendices or attachments.

All requests for additional information or questions regarding this RFP shall be directed to Robert
Porr in writing via email by November 7, 2018.

The Agency certifies this request has been sent to at least 3 firms.

I. BACKGROUND

Introduction

The Agency anticipates offering $32 - $36 million in Tax-exempt Bonds to fund capital
improvement projects in the amount of $35 million. The issuance will be on parity with the Agency’s
existing obligations secured by its wholesale system, including certain 2008A, 2010A, 2014A, 2015A,
2016A and 2018A obligations. The Agency’s applicable parity bonds are currently rated “AA” by
S&P and “AA-” by Fitch.

The expected term of the 2019 Bonds is anticipated to be 30 years, depending on market conditions
and Agency preferences.

Timeline

The transaction is expected to price in April and close in May of 2019.

19900 MacArthur Blvd., Suite 1100 # Irvine, CA 92612 ¢ pﬁ5ne: 949.660.7300 ¢ fax: 949.474.8773 ¢ www.fieldman.com
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Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Request for Proposals
Page 1

The Project Team

Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc. has been retained by the Agency as its Municipal Advisor and
Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth will serve as bond counsel; bond counsel will prepare the POS and
Official Statement.

Selection Considerations & Critetia

The Agency intends to select a firm with highly relevant qualifications providing investment banking
and underwriting services for transactions similar to the proposed 2019 Bonds. Selection criteria
will include written responses to the questions below, firm qualifications and fees.

The Agency reserves the right to negotiate fees prior to the selection of an underwriting firm, or
firms. The Agency further reserves the right to select one or more firms or to reject all proposals.

II. QUESTIONS

1. Describe your firm’s retail and institutional sales capability related to tax-exempt financings.
Please provide an example of your firm’s pricing of an AA-rated California water transaction
for a par amount in a range of $30 — $45 million completed within the last six months.

2. Discuss your ideas on various call features that may be recommendable for the Agency’s
proposed transaction.

3. In light of the current conditions in the municipal marketplace, discuss your structuring and
overall marketing approach for the 2019 Bonds. Provide your firm’s forecast of tax-exempt
interest rates for the remainder of the year and through June, 2019.

III. QUALIFICATIONS

1. List or summarize your firm’s experience as senior manager for California-based water
enterprise revenue bonds in the last 3 years.

2. Provide a proposed project team, including your underwriter, including the resumes and
roles of each team member. Provide each team member’s experience over the last 3 years
with:

a. California water enterprise revenue bonds, revenue certificates of participation and
note/highlight tax-exempt transactions (senior managed transactions only)

IV. FEES

Provide a detail of your proposed fees and expenses for the financing, and any assumptions used in
deriving this fee structure. Include takedowns broken out by maturity. For consistency of
comparison, please assume a par amount of $35 million with a 30 year term.

Include the cost of underwriter’s counsel as a fixed expense item, and which firm and contact
person you propose to retain.
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ATTACHMENT 2
Citigroup Global Markets Inc. | Municipal Securities Division CI tl

November 12, 2018

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency

Request for Proposals for Investment Banking / Underwriting
Services

SCV

WATER

Citigroup Global Markets Inc.
Public Finance Department

One Sansome Street 444 S. Flower Street 388 Greenwich Street
27" Floor 27" Floor 8" Floor
San Francisco, CA 94104 Los Angeles, CA 90071 New York, NY 10014

www.citi.com

G-23 Disclaimer: Citigroup is providing the information contained in this document for discussion purposes only in anticipation of serving
as underwriter to Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (the “Issuer”). Citigroup is not making a recommendation to the Issuer. The primary
role of Citigroup, as an underwriter, is to purchase securities, for resale to investors, in an arm’s-length commercial transaction between the
Issuer and Citigroup. In its role as underwriter, Citigroup would have financial and other interests that differ from those of the Issuer.
Citigroup is not acting as a municipal advisor, financial advisor or fiduciary to the Issuer or any other person or entity. The information
provided is not intended to be and should not be construed as “advice” within the meaning of Section 15B of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. The Issuer should consult with its own financial and/or municipal, legal, accounting, tax and other advisors, as applicable, to the
extent it deems appropriate. The Issuer should consider whether to engage an advisor to act in a fiduciary capacity on its behalf in
connection with this transaction.
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November 12, 2018

Eric Campbell Robert Porr
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates

Dear Mr. Campbell and Mr. Porr:

Citigroup Global Markets Inc. (“Citi”) is pleased to submit our response to the Request for Proposals for
Investment Banking / Underwriting Services for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (the “Agency” or
“SCVWA”). We have designed our response to address the required components of the RFP and to demonstrate
Citi's unmatched underwriting capabilities nationally and within California water and wastewater utility finance.
Provided below are some of our key qualifications:

We have deep experience with California utilities and Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency. Citi is among the
leading underwriters of California water and wastewater utility issues. Since January 1, 2015, Citi has served as
senior manager on a negotiated basis for California water-related credits on $3.4 billion of par across 42
transactions for total market share of 12%. In particular, Jonathan Ash and Cameron Parks have served as
coordinating bankers on almost all of these California water-related financings, and so have the experience to
bring pioneering, innovative structuring and marketing strategies to the Agency’s upcoming sale. Citi has also
worked with SCVWA in meeting its debt portfolio management goals for nearly 15 years, including most recently,
the Agency’s 2018 taxable financing. Having served the Agency in various capital markets capacities, Citi fully
understands and is able to help the Agency achieve its structural and organizational objectives.

We will commit our resources to the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency. Citi has significant resources that we
will pledge to the Agency to see that the proposed financing is successfully executed:

v'  Capital Markets Platform — Citi has 81 sales, trading, Debt Capital Markets and underwriting professionals
nationwide spread across 8 offices

v"Underwriting — Citi has 7 underwriters nationally, including Keisha Belinfanti in New York and Matt Hage in
Los Angeles; Citi's Los Angeles municipal sales and trading desk is one of the only municipal desks in the
state of California

v" Institutional Investor Coverage — Citi’s institutional sales force of 81 professionals is comprised of 5 Credit
Analytics professionals, 6 Debt Capital Markets professionals and 10 regional professionals in California who
are the main participants in Citi's California primary and secondary market efforts

v" Greenwich Survey — Citi has an unrivalled marketing and distribution network that has been ranked #1 by
Greenwich Associates for the 7" year in a row

v" Retail Sales Force — Citi’s 4-tiered retail distribution includes not only Citi's Personal Wealth Management,
Private Bank, and SMA sales desk, but also our exclusive distribution agreement with Fidelity which would
give the Agency access to over 19 million individual investor accounts holding over $2 trillion in assets

We believe Citi is best-positioned to help Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency execute an optimal plan of
finance in volatile conditions. Citi can help the Agency structure, market, and execute its upcoming transaction:
v' Market Conditions — With the Fed raising rates, geopolitical tensions, and Post-Tax Reform conditions, the
Agency needs an underwriter who can weather volatile conditions and commit capital if need be

v Capital Commitment — Citi has excess net capital of $7.75 billion as of June 30, 2018 and can underwrite up
to $1 billion in bonds without additional internal approvals

v Structuring — After carefully reviewing the materials provided and the Agency’s debt portfolio as a whole, Citi
has developed three different comprehensive structuring scenarios for the Agency to consider

v" Marketing — Citi is more than willing to help SCVWA execute our proposed marketing plan including early
engagement with investors, investor calls or internet roadshow, and provide the Agency with Targeted Data-
Driven Investor Information tailored to the Agency and similar California Water credits

We thank you for the opportunity to present our qualifications for this important transaction. If you have any
questions regarding the information contained herein please do not hesitate to reach out to us.

Sincerely,
Jtiert o L
Jonathan Ash, Director Cameron Parks, Managing Director
Water Infrastructure Finance Group Head of Water Infrastructure Finance Group
(415) 951-1745 (213) 486-7130

jonathan.a.ash@ociti.com cameron.parks@ociti.com
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Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Request for Proposals for Investment Banking / Underwriting Services

November 12, 2018
Page 1

Il. Questions

1. Describe your firm’s retail and institutional sales capability related to tax-exempt

Citi's Award Winning Institutional Salesforce. Citi
employs 81 institutional sales, trading, and underwriting
professionals focused exclusively on municipal securities.
Our syndicate and sales and trading professionals are the
most seasoned in the industry, with our most senior
professionals averaging over 25 years of experience.
Highlights of Citi’s capital markets platform include a team
of 70 Institutional sales & trading representatives, 5 credit
analytics professionals and 6 debt capital markets
professionals covering every major institutional buyer. Our 8 regional
underwriting and sales desks provide underwriting support to enhance

financings...

Citi’s California Municipal Bond Desk
444 S. Flower St., 27 Floor, Los Angeles, CA 90017

2017
Rank

2016

Greenwich Survey Category Rank

the distribution of bonds with small and medium-sized institutional

Understanding Customers’ Needs #1 #1

investors across the country. Citi specifically has a Los Angeles
underwriting desk to support our California and West Coast issuers.

Executing Large Trades (>$10mm) #1 #1

Citi’s capital markets strength is well known in the industry and of note,

Providing the Greatest Liquidity #1 #1

Greenwich Associates, an independent provider of market intelligence
to the financial services industry, ranked our municipal sales force #1
in quality and market share for the seventh year in a row.

Citi's New Partnership with
Fidelity. We would like to note that
Citi has recently entered into an
exclusive retail distribution
agreement with Fidelity Capital
Markets. Fidelity’s core strength is
its ability to reach true retail
investors with a national distribution
network. Fidelity’s retail platform is
one of the largest, if not the largest,
pool of retail investors in the
industry, with 19 million individual
retail accounts, holding $2 trillion in

Fidelity’s National Distribution Presence

/:

s
I

Distribution Statistics

Number of Branches 182 Branches

#1 #1

Product Availability Across Size & Credit

Fidelity’s California Distribution Presence
™

Distribution Statistics

Number of Branches 31 Branches

Total Branch Headcount 3,253 Professionals

assets, $24.6 billion of which are

Total Branch Headcount 501 Professionals

Total Accounts 19,026,397 Accounts

Total Accounts 2,410,017 Accounts

municipal bonds. Fidelity makes

advanced, user-friendly technology =~ _[°MmAM

$24.6 billion

Total Muni AUM $3.9 billion

Total National AUM $2.0 trillion

a core component of its distribution

Total California AUM $277.4 billion

and marketing efforts. With over one million unique visitors every day, Fidelity.com provides a powerful platform
on which investors can sign-up for email alerts to receive notice of tax-exempt and taxable municipal bonds that
become available for purchase as part of a new issue. These alerts deliver information about a bond deal directly
to investors’ inboxes and have been proven to drive new retail orders. This feature will permit us to micro-target

Fidelity’s retail investors by drilling down not only to the states in which

investors reside, but also to individual

investors’ zip codes. In California, Fidelity has over 2.4 million accounts and $277 billion in assets.

Dedicated Debt Capital Markets Team. Citi has made significant investments in human capital and technology

to better serve our issuer clients such as the Agency through the creation of
our DCM group and development of sophisticated investor targeting models.
DCM creates extensive, data-driven marketing programs for our issuer clients
by leveraging the massive amount of market data uniquely available to Citi as
a result of our dominance in secondary market trading and our leading market
share in the primary market. The DCM team works in partnership across the

Municipal Securities Division, including with members of the syndicate
sales and trading operations. DCM begins by identifying buyers of

Agency’s debt and then locating investors actively supporting comparable
bond issues in the primary and secondary markets. This targeted investor list,
combined with the output of Citi's proprietary predictive buying algorithm,

allows us to discern patterns of investor activity, providing our sales force
a book of strategic accounts to focus on.

Identify Current
Holders

Convert
Marginal
Buyers

Search for
Additional
Active
Buyers

and
the

Create
Predictive Order
Book

Utilize Citi’s
Predictive Buying
Algorithm

with
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Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Request for Proposals for Investment Banking / Underwriting Services

November 12, 2018
Page 2

Marketing Approach: Citi’s Synchronized Strategy. We believe that Citi can provide the Agency with the best-
in-class execution and pricing through Citi’s Synchronized Strategy that draws upon specific tactics of a local
presence combined with national capabilities.

Citi’s Synchronized Marketing Strategy: Blending Local Resources with National Capabilities

Local Presence
Syndicate Desk:
Location:

National Capabilities
Syndicate Desk: National
Location: New York

California

Los Angeles

Matt Hage

Director, Western
Region Underwriting

10 Years’ Experience

DN NI NI N

Trades $400-$450

‘/ Keisha Belinfanti

\/ Director, National
Syndicate

‘/ 12 Years’ Experience

\/ Priced over 100 bond

issues for $10 billion
in par amount

Marketing Tactics

million municipal
revenue bonds weekly

Marketing Tactics

Q{) Coordinate with Citi’s National Municipal Syndicate
to prepare for the sale

q{) Leverage the strength and local resources of Citi’s
Los Angeles underwriting desk

Release the POS a week in advance of pricing to
maximize the opportunity to market the bonds to
investors

After releasing the POS at least a week prior to
pricing, highlight on Citi’s internal calendar and
IPREO’s public calendar

Target local buyers and allow for priority on bona-
fide retail orders (particularly in-state)

Canvass local buyers that Citi has sales force
coverage of and who tend to buy California Water
bonds of the Agency’s proposed size and structure

Q> Enter the market with aggressive pre-pricing levels Q> Gauge the national market from New York to
provide aggressive spreads

Qb % Create a solid book of investors in order to

“bump” spreads and lower costs of financing

Build the book of buyers and ensure stable
subscription to allow for pricing “bumps” — spread
tightening / yield lowering

Target Investors: SCVWA Investors
Loews Corporation
Franklin
Thornburg Investment
Putnam Investment
PIMCO

Target Investors: Buyers of CA Water Credits

BlackRock

Alliance Bernstein
American Century
AlIG Asset Mgmt
Breckinridge Capital

Nuveen

JP Morgan Asset Mgmt
Columbia Mgmt
American Equity
Capital Research

Vanguard

MacKay Shields
Western Asset Mgmt
USAA Asset Mgmt
Fidelity Investment

Below we provide a recent example of Citi’'s sole managed experience selling California Water Revenue bonds.
Although the transaction was only $23 million, we believe it is still comparable to the Agency’s upcoming sale.

Valley County Water District Financing Authority
$22,845,000 Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A

On June 27, 2018, Citi served as sole manager for Valley County Water District Financing Authority’s inaugural
sale of $23 million Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A. The bond proceeds were used to finance improvements
throughout the Water System and the bonds were rated AA- by S&P. This was the Authority’s first public sale,
and so Citi collaborated closely with the Authority and Fieldman Rolapp to structure the bonds, which were
serialized through 2038, with term bonds in 2043 and 2048. Unique features included a 9 year par call and sub-
5% coupons in maturities 2019-2021, 2034-2038, and in the 2048 term, which lowered overall cost of debt
service. During the marketing period, Citi worked with our internal sales force to successfully market the new
credit and enter the market with aggressive spreads. After building a book of buyers with 19 investors and an
oversubscription of 1.5x, the financing team was able to lower spreads by as much as 6 bps in certain maturities.
Citi also underwrote $110,000 without increasing spreads to preserve the Authority’s pricing. This successful sale
was led by Jonathan Ash as coordinating banker and Keisha Belinfanti as lead underwriter.
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Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency November 12, 2018
Request for Proposals for Investment Banking / Underwriting Services Page 3

2. Discuss your ideas on various call features that may be recommendable for the Agency’s proposed transaction.

With the elimination of tax-exempt advance refundings as part of the recently passed Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, the
Agency may wish to consider shorter call options as a means to provide enhanced flexibility for its future financing
needs. With fewer opportunities to access the market via advance refundings, we recommend either staggering
call dates across the portfolio in years with sparser callable par or stacking it on a year where there is already
callable par such that the Agency can do one refunding of both callable series. Below, we show the Agency’s
Wholesale System’s callable par over the next 10 years and believe that there is flexibility for the Agency to
consider a 5-year call in 2024 or a 7-year call in 2026.

Summary of Debt Events

60
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L'Projected Series 2019A Callable Par

Short Call Considerations. We note that while the up- ] o ]
front pricing cost on shorter call options is lower on a yield- | Stated Yield Pricing Adjustments to 10-year Call

to-call basis for any callable bonds issued with premium 5-Year Call -25 basis points after call
coupons (i.e. 5% bonds), if the bonds are not refunded _ _
near the call date there is a significant increase or “yield 7-Year Call -15 basis points after call

kick” in the yield-to-maturity of the shorter call bonds as compared to bonds with a 10-year call option.

The yield-to-maturity can essentially be interpolated for any ¢z Comparison for 30-year Bond (5% Coupon)
year the Agency could theoretically call its bonds. That is, a 5-year, 7-Year, and 10-Year Call

30-year bond with a traditional 10-year call feature can be 5-Year Call YTM: 4.54%
called any year between 2029 and 2049. With a 5-year call, ~ >00% 7 7-Year Call YTM: 4.43%
the bonds can be redeemed between 2024 and 2049. With 10-Year Call YTM: 4.32%
a 7-year call, the bonds can be redeemed between 2026  4.50% 1 eeaeseereesn ULl
and 2049. The yield-to-maturity, then, makes sense to et leem T T
evaluate assuming the bonds are redeemed in any of those ~ 4.00% 1 ..-",/’:,—"'

years. We present this calculation in the accompanying call _,L,L/'

comparison chart, which considers the trade-offs of such  3.50% {——— 3.66%

call options assuming a 30-year bond. The intersection of 341% 3.51%

the three scales represents the date on which, if the bonds  3.00% ™

are redeemed, the Agency is indifferent between various

the call features. As shown, should the Agency issue the 5-  250% +——F—"F—"++—++—"—+—"—""+"r+—"+—+r 7

year call bonds and refund them within 7 years (2 years Terre 2223 RARA
after the call date), this option would be more advantageous _ggig Eggg W; ?'iz:: g:::

o , —_ Wl 7-
compared to the traditional 10-year call option. If the 2049 bond w/ 10-Year Call

Agency does not refund the 2019 Bonds by that time it
would realize a higher yield-to-maturity.
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Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency November 12, 2018
Request for Proposals for Investment Banking / Underwriting Services Page 4

3. In light of the current conditions in the municipal marketplace, discuss your structuring...

Considering the Aggregate Debt Service Profile in Conjunction with Rates and Charges. As the Agency
continues to manage project funding for 2019 and beyond, while balancing user rates and charges, we believe it
will be critical to maintain a programmatic approach to debt issuance and cost management. As a starting point,
we have reviewed the Agency’s aggregate debt service profile for the outstanding Wholesale System Bonds. The
Agency’'s Wholesale System debt portfolio is conservatively 96% fixed rate and 4% variable rate as well as 91%
tax-exempt bonds and 9% taxable bonds. The outstanding debt consists of seven total series on two different
liens with a total outstanding principal of $307 MM. On the Senior Lien, there is $104 MM of outstanding 1999A
CABs. On the Parity Lien, there are six series — Series 2008A (Variable), 2010A, 2014A, 2015A, 2016A and
2018A — with a total of $203 MM in par amount. Four out of the total seven series are callable and have a total of
$138 MM callable on their respective call dates.

Outstanding Tax Max Final ParcCall

Coupon Type Coupon (%) . Callable Par

Par' Status Maturity Date

SeniorLien Debt

Series 1999A2 $104,450,000 Tax-Exempt  Capital Appreciation 5.800% 8/1/2030 NC $-
Parity Lien Debt

Series 2008A 11,850,000 Tax-Exempt Variable Variable 8/1/2020 NC -
Series 2010A 48 455 000 Tax Exempt Fixed 5.000% 8/1/2030 8/1/2020 42 080,000
Series 2014A 5,990,000 Tax Exempt Fixed 5.000% 8/1/2020 NC -
Series 2015A 57,190,000 Tax Exempt Fixed 5.000% 8/1/2035 8/1/2025 39,130,000
Series 2016A 52,640,000 Tax Exempt Fixed 5.000% 8/1/2046 8/1/2026 33,935,000
Series 2018A 26,735,000 Taxable Fixed 3.875% 8/1/2048 8/1/2028 22 550,000
Total Parity Lien Debt 202,735,000

$307,310,000 $137,695,000
1) Outstanding Par does not include the principal that rolled off in August 1, 2018. 2) 1999A CABs Outstanding Par amount represents the full amount of the Capital Appreciation Bonds.

Opportunities for Future Issuance. As pictured in the graph below, the Agency’s bonds pay debt service that
steps up through FY2031 and then steps down over time. The first plateau of payments occurs through Fiscal
Year 2031 and averages more than $26 MM annually. In 2032, there is step down with the average debt service
decreasing to ~ $8MM until FY2037. This gap between FY2032 and FY2036 presents a meaningful opportunity to
amortize principal for the upcoming sale as well as future offerings. We present this targeted debt service strategy
on the next page for the Agency’s consideration as the third scenario. Returning to the debt profile below, after
FY2037 and onward, the Agency’s debt service payments post 2037 are minimal and have capacity for future
funding needs.

Wholesale System Debt Profile’

30,000,000
25,000,000
20,000,000
15,000,000
10,000,000
5,000,000
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1) Debt Service Graphs include principal that rolled offin August 1, 2018 for illustrative purposes.
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Amortization Considerations. As the Agency evaluates the potential structure of the Series 2019 Bonds, there
are two fundamental “book end” structures: Stand-Alone Level Debt Service versus Wrapped Debt Service. The
Stand Alone Level Structure amortizes principal over a 30-year period (FY2050 final maturity) to produce level
debt service payments; the objective of this structure is to maintain a lower all-in borrowing cost. The Wrapped
Debt Service Structure amortizes principal in years 18 through 30 to wrap around the Wholesale System’s prior
debt with the goal of achieving level debt service for the whole portfolio. The third scenario we added was a
Targeted Debt Service Structure, where we target significant decrease of prior debt service for the entire portfolio
in FY2032 and begin amortizing principal then to achieve upfront lower costs in borrowing.

Wrapped Debt Service

Stand Alone Level Debt Service
Structure ($000)
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Targeted Debt Service
Structure ($000)
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Statistical Comparison

Statistics Value Statistics Value Statistics Value
Total Par Amount $31,385,000 Total Par Amount $31,715,000 Total Par Amount $30,665,000
Total Interest $30,386,313 Total Interest $40,917,438 Total Interest $22,001,813
Total Debt Service $61,771,313 Total Debt Service $72,632,438 Total Debt Service $52,666,813
Average D/S FY20-30 $1,966,879 Average D/S FY20-30 $1,560,973 Average D/S FY20-30 $1,498,403
Average D/S FY31-35 $2,020,083 Average D/S FY31-35 $3,177,125 Average D/S FY31-35 $4,771,975
Average Annual D/S $1,992,623 Average Annual D/S $2,342,982 Average Annual D/S $3,098,048
All-in True Interest Cost 4.09% All-in True Interest Cost 4.32% All-in True Interest Cost 3.72%
Aggregate Max D/S $28,822,972 Aggregate Max D/S $28,388,347 Aggregate Max D/S $28,335,847

As the Agency evaluates various structuring options, advantages, disadvantages and considerations for both
credit and marketing should be weighed accordingly.

Level Debt Service Structure

Advantages

A Straightforward structure similar to prior
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
practices

Wrapped Debt Service Structure
Advantages

A May relieve near-term pressure on rates

and charges

A Current market conditions allow for a low
cost of capital to be locked in, compared

to historical borrowing rates

Targeted Debt Service Structure

Advantages
A Generates lowest all-in borrowing cost
A Lowest aggregate debt service cost

Disadvantages

VY Amortizing principal of borrowings in
early years may cause unnecessary
pressure on rates and charges

Disadvantages

v All-in TIC will be more expensive as bonds
amortize later along the yield curve

¥ Total debt service is higher due to the delay
in the repayment of principal

Disadvantages
v Limited ability to further blend down
borrowing cost

Credit Considerations

v itis important to ensure that annual debt
service coverage remains sufficient to
maintain ratings

Credit Considerations

v Wrapped structure raises aggregate
portfolio cost of borrowing

Credit Considerations

v Deferring principal repayment may erode
principal amortization capacity for future
debt issuance

Marketing Considerations

Q> Likely investor demand for serialized
bonds for 1 - 20 years, allowing for yield
curve savings to be captured

Q> Allows for greater investor diversity,
particularly with varied couponing
structures throughout amortization

Marketing Considerations

Qb Later amortizing principal may only appeal
to certain investors

Marketing Considerations

% May limit couponing diversification with
limited principal amortization along yield
curve
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Citi's SCVWA Marketing Plan. Our goal for the Agency is to achieve the lowest cost of financing for the
proposed 2019 Revenue Bond transaction. Doing so requires a senior managing underwriter that (1) can work
with the Agency and its finance team to properly structure its debt offering; (2) can help most efficiently present it
to investors; (3) has a well-capitalized distribution system that can effectively access institutional and retail

investors; and (4) is willing and able to underwrite bonds to support the Agency’s
issuance when market conditions prove difficult. Citi excels in each of those
requirements, and will provide exemplary service to the Agency.

Early Engagement with Investors: Announcement of sale via EMMA
before POS posting. Citi recommends posting a notice to EMMA
announcing the Agency’s anticipated financings as much as one month in
advance of posting the POS in order to make the transaction “public”’. This
allows our Debt Capital Markets (DCM) team to dialogue with investors about the
transaction and specifically regarding their interest and willingness to conduct a 1-on-1

o0
NN

EMMA

Electronic Municipal Market Access
A senice of the MSRB

The Santa Clarita Valley Water
Agency anticipates issuing

approximately $30 million of

Revenue Bonds in Q2 of 2019.

While it is the Agency’s
expectation today to move forward

with this transaction, it reserves

the right to modify its place of

calls. Citi successfully utilized this approach on many of our recent senior managed

transactions. A sample of potential language is included in the adjacent box.
provides a “cliff notes” overview of the credit to help market the 2019
Revenue Bonds. By tracking internet roadshow viewership, the team

can stay engaged with interested investors and accurately gauge participation in
the Agency’s transaction, helping to ensure the Agency’s constituents are aware

financing. 0

Sample Investor Materials

Investor Presentation
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Series 2019 Revenue Bonds

of the sale and can participate. 0
One-on-One Investor Calls and/or Meetings. One-on-one calls with v omian e |
% investors facilitate an intimate understanding of the Agency’'s
organizational history, as well as its credit, which ultimately serves to foster a better relationship
between the Agency and its investors. In prior Citi-led transactions, one common theme we have
continued to hear from investors is how informative, transparent, and thoughtful these discussions were. These
calls can be coordinated by Citi and to minimize the demands on the Agency and its staff’s time.

Internet Investor Roadshow. Citi recommends considering an
online investor roadshow presentation consisting of 10-15 slides that

citi

Sales Force Teach-In. Prior to pricing Citi will hold a sales force teach-in that is designed to educate
y sales personnel on the Agency’s credit, transaction specifics and key value propositions. This teach-in
energizes the sales force and brings focus to the upcoming transaction.
Targeted Investor Marketing: Review Citi’s Investor Algorithm Results. Citi has recently
% established a new Debt Capital Markets (“DCM”) group and has made significant investments in
human capital and technology to better serve our issuer clients by leveraging Citi’'s massive amount of
market data to create extensive, proprietary, data-driven marketing programs for issuers. Citi's
proprietary investor target marketing model and algorithm, called the Citi Intelligent Search Engine (“CISE”), is
built from both public and Citi’'s proprietary data sources, which represents the richest set of investor data
available in the industry, given Citi’s leading position in the primary and secondary markets. CISE effectively
mass-mines the vast amount of granular data that Citi collects on constantly-changing investor buying and trading
activity and employs an artificial intelligence-based predictive buying algorithm to target investors most likely to
participate in the Agency’s transaction. As a result of Citi’'s extensive investor marketing efforts we have been able
to successfully maximize pricing tension for our issuer clients relative to our peers. Citi accomplishes this 1) by
generating excess investor demand by employing strategic investor outreach programs and 2) by standing behind
our transactions, both in the secondary market to provide liquidity and in the primary market to commit capital
when necessary. Citi pledges to bring these resources to bear for the Agency’s 2019 transaction.

Market Leadership through Underwriting Unsold Bonds. During pricing, the Agency will want its senior
manager to be a market maker and be able to hold the line on fair pricing rather than cave-in to the last marginal
institutional investor’s desired yield level. It takes capital, willingness to use that capital, market knowledge and
confidence that the product can be distributed in order to underwrite sizable tranches of unsold bonds. Citi has
stepped in frequently to underwrite unsold bonds to maintain fair pricing. As a practical matter, Citi’'s strong
capital base and sizable excess net capital position enable us to underwrite any potential bond offering required
by the Agency. Since 2015, Citi has committed over $7 billion of capital to deliver aggressive pricing to issuers
nationwide. In addition, Citi currently allocates $50 billion of capital to the Municipal Securities Division and the
Division can underwrite and own up to $1 billion of unsold balances of a single transaction without additional

internal approvals.
65 A@
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Interest Rate Considerations. While Citi's Rate Forecasts

Municipal Research Group does not publish
5-Year Treasury Current 4Q18 1Q19 2Q19 3Q19 4Q19 1Q20

forecasts for future movement in MMD, our U.S.
economists dO regularly pUb'lSh forecasts fOf CitI's Forecast 304% 2.75% 2.90% 290% 290% 290% 290%

U.S. Treasuries of various durations. We believe

. . . . 10-Year Treasu Current 4Q18 1Q19 2Q19 3Q19 4Q19 1Q20
that an analysis of the ongoing relationship il

Citi's Forecast 2.80% 2.85% 2.80% 2.85% 2.85% 2.85%

between Treasury and MMD in conjunction with 322% e - — — — -
317% 3.30%  3.33% 3.42% 3.49% 352%

Economists” Consensus

Citi and Street forecasts of 30-Year Treasury can

provide an informed view of 30-Year MMD in
30-Year Treasury Current 4Q18 1Q19 2Q19 3Q19 4019 1Q20

June 2019. In the table to the right, we provide

e . . . Citi's Forecast 290% 2.85% 285% 285% 285% 2.85%
Citi's forecast for Treasuries of various durations =" =" 3460 " CCC S T
versus the Street (Economists’ Consensus). As Economists” Consensus 3.35% 3.42% 350% 3.54% 360% 3.66%
you will see, Citi’s long-term 30-Year Treasury

Fed Funds Current 4Q18 1Q19 2Q19 3Q19 4Q19 1Q20

forecast diverges significantly from consensus

economist forecasts with our economist  Ciii's Forecast b omyy 250% 275% 300% 300% 300% 300%
projecting 30-year Treasury to decline from the  Economists’ Cansensus ° 250% 275% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.13%

current level of 3.46% to 2.85% at the close of

2019 versus 3.66% for the Street. Citi's Chief US economist is, currently, far more conservative in projecting
increases in long-term rates as he believes issues with global growth and the potential outbreak of a trade war
between the United States and its trading partners could impact global rates. Below we provide additional
considerations for future movements in Treasuries.

Why Will Rates Go Up? Why Will Rates Stay Low?
A 1Q2018 and 2Q2018 US GDP growth of 2.9% and 4.1%, ¥ Segments of economy still “recovering”
respectively, strong results versus other developed economies V¥V Concerns over the outbreak of a global trade war could cap
A US near full employment with Unemployment in October at where long-term interest rates rise
3.7%, down from 8% at the start of 2013 and the lowest level V Relative growth and rate differential of US vs the rest of the
since 1969 world
A Continued strong monthly job growth with 250K of job growth in | ¥ Continued Quantitative Easing by other global central banks
October V  Despite strong unemployment numbers, wage growth and
A Fed has completed QE, removing a source of massive demand inflation continue to be relatively anaemic
for Treasuries as China and Russia consider their own
Treasury purchases
A Fed is concerned with future market destabilization

Forecasting 30-Year MMD. In order to 30-Year MMD Based On

apply Citi and Street Economist’s

forecasts for 30-Year Treasury to 30- Average Ratio of MMD to TSY FOSSeIe?sYt (S?Ergg‘}/o) FofeocaTsiY(ZC.:gé%)
Year MMD, one can look at the “gen 100.62% 3.52% 2.87%
historical “ratios” between the two Since January 1, 2018 97.54% 3.41% 2.78%
indices. In the table to the right, Citi  since January 1, 2016 97.93% 3.43% 2.79%
has displayed the average ratios overa  since January 1, 2008 103.97% 3.64% 2.96%

variety of time periods, with 30-Year

MMD anywhere from 97.54% to 103.97% of 30-Year Treasury. Citi then applied these values based on the
2Q2019 30-Year Treasury forecast in order to come up with an implied value for 30-year MMD. Assuming the
various MMD/TSY ratios, Street Economist’s forecast predict June 2019 30-Year MMD to be anywhere from
3.41% to 3.64% with Citi’s forecast predicting anywhere from 2.78% to 2.96%. In the graph on the following page,
we display the relationship between 30-Year Treasury and 30-Year MMD since January 1, 2008.
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30-Year MMD and Treasury since January 1, 2008
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Analyze the use of a Rate Lock to mitigate rate risk. When the Agency sells bonds via a public offering, the
yield required by investors is based on benchmark tax-exempt interest rates and the Agency’s specific credit
spread / yield premium. Based on current market conditions, both benchmark tax-exempt rates and credit
spreads are historically attractive. Benchmark tax-exempt rates and credit spreads fluctuate based on market
conditions until the day of bond pricing. Tax-exempt rates can be impacted by changes in yield in the US
Treasury market, supply and demand factors, or perceived or actual changes in the value of tax-exemption.

For high-grade issuers, such as the Agency, the benchmark tax-exempt rate is historically the largest and most
volatile component of the borrowing cost. The Agency can lock the most volatile component of its borrowing cost
by executing a MMD Rate Lock transaction with Citi. MMD Rate Locks allow the Agency to lock the benchmark
rates on tax-exempt issuances at a low premium to current market rates. The spread between the locked rate
and current rate (i.e. the forward premium) is driven by the duration of the locked period, expected market
volatility, and supply and demand factors. Citi is an active market-maker in MMD Rate Locks for tax-exempt
institutional investors, which allows Citi to lock benchmark yields at attractive forward premiums or spreads to
current rates.

AGENCY is Exposed to Market and Interest Rate AGENCY Manages Interest Rate Risk with a Rate

Risks Lock
Historical Rates Probabilities Historical Rates Probabilities
4.00% . 4.00%
— 20-Year MMD == +/- 2 Sid Dev — 20-Year MMD +/-2 Std Dev Rate Lock
wees Current mm +/- 1 Std Dev _.-". ---- Current +/- 1 Std Dev Executed
R = Rate Lock
3.50% 3.50%

3.00%

3.00%

o
2.50% 2.50%

Credit Spreads
remain subject to

2.00% market volatility

2.00%

Oct-2016
Apr-2017
Oct-2017
Apr-2018
Oct-2018
Oct-2016
Apr-2017
Oct-2017
Apr-2018
Oct-2018

Mechanically MMD Rate Locks entail a single payment that is calculated on the bond pricing date and settled on
the closing date of the bonds. If MMD rates are higher than the locked rates on the bond pricing date, Citi will
make a cash payment to the Agency equal to the present value impact of the rate increase. On the other hand, if
MMD rates are lower than the locked rates on the bond pricing date, the Agency would owe a termination
payment to Citi. The MMD Rate Lock's status as a Qualified Hedge allows the Agency to not only make any
hedge payment out of bond proceeds but also include them in the Arbitrage Yield calculation, subject to Bond
Counsel approval.

MMD Rate Locks are a simple, short-term transaction whose documentation can typically be drafted and
executed in a matter of days. Citi will typically prepare a Long-Form Confirm (as opposed to an entire set of ISDA
documents) and would be looking for the Agency to provide a resolution authorizing the execution of the rate lock
as well as an enforceability opinion covering the Confirm. The Agency would also sign short letter identifying the
Rate Lock as a Qualified Hedge for tax purposes. After execution, documentation, approvals, hearings and other
tasks required in a public bond offering proceed as usual.
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lll. Qualifications

1. List or summarize your firm’s experience as senior manager... (Please see the following page)

2. Provide a proposed project team...

Citi's proposed team for the Agency is organized with a single goal in mind — delivering the highest and most
comprehensive level of service possible through the effective utilization of Citi’s diverse resources. The staffing of
our team has been organized for optimal responsiveness and the professionals on the team have been selected
based on their specific and relevant experience for the Agency’s proposed transaction.

Team Members Role Relevant Experience

Jonathan provides day-to-day banking coverage for
Water issuers nationally and in California. Over the last

Jonathan Ash Primary Contact 5 years, Jonathan has worked on over 100 California
Director Lead Banker revenue bond issues, totaling more than $7.5 billion in
San Francisco Water par. Recently, Jonathan has worked with SCVWA, San
(415) 951-1745 Infrastructure Francisco PUC, Stockton Public Financing Authority,
jonathan.a.ash@citi.com Group Sacrament Suburban WD, Valley County Water District,

Imperial Irrigation District, among others. 13 years of

experience.

. Within California, Cameron has senior managed over

Camerpn Pgrks senior B_anker 250 utility bond financings totaling to over $15 billion of
Managing Director Oversight . ”

par. He has worked with a multitude of water related
Los Angeles Head of Water ! . . L

issuers ranging from Metropolitan Water District of
(213) 486-7130 Infrastructure South Californi S Di c W
cameron. parks@citi.com Group out ern  California to San Diego ognty ater

’ ’ Authority, among others. 20 years of experience.

Deb recently joined Citi from Fidelity Capital Markets,
Debra Saunders where she spent the last eight years successfully
Director Retail Banking marketing Fidelity’s retail distribution to municipal
San Francisco Support issuers nationwide. Debra joined Citi to ensure that the
(415) 951-1749 Fidelity Liaison Citi and Fidelity partnership maximizes retail distribution
debra.saunders@citi.com for California water and sewer clients. 20 years of

experience.
Michael provides analytical and transaction support for
a wide variety of water and sewer ultility issuers across

Michael Sanduski

A ; Analytical the country and, in particular, California. Recent

ssociate . - . !

San Francisco Support transqctlon experience includes transactions for thg S'an

(415) 951-1614 Water Francisco PUC, Sacramento Suburban Water District,

michael.sanduski@citi.com Infrastructure Imperial Irrigation District, Los Angeles Department of
' ' Group Water and Power, Valley County Water District, and

Stockton PFA. 6 years of experience.

Susan assists our water issuers on transaction analysis

iz;@gth Analytical and document suppor.t throughout the Western Region.
New York S_uppo_rt She has worked with SCVWA (2018 tran§actlon),
(212) 723-4858 Financial Stockton PFA_, . Valley County. Water District, and
susan.wu@citi.com Structuring Eastern Municipal Water District. 2 vyears of
experience.
Matt Hage Matt has worked in the municipal securities indu_stry for
Director Lead Underwriter nearly 1_0_ years and is CL_,lrrentIy focused on tra<_j|ng and
Los Angeles Los Angeles underwriting across multiple products and credits. Prior
(213) 486-8817 Underwriting Desk to joining Citi in 2018, he worked at Bank of America

Merrill Lynch for roughly 7 years serving in trading and

matthew.hage@citi.com underwriting roles. 10 years of experience.

Keisha entered the industry when she joined the
Keisha Belinfanti Municipal Syndicate desk in 2009 at Citi with a

Director Natlc_)nal particular focus on Western Region issuers. Keisha has
Syndicate . o ) ) . X
New York New York priced many California water financings, including
(212) 723-7093 Sacramento Suburban Water District and Valley County
keisha.belinfanti@citi.com Water District, and Stockton PFA. 12 vyears of

experience.

N\,
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1. List or summarize your firm’s experience as senior manager for California-based water enterprise...

Negotiated California Water and Sewer Financing Senior Managed Negotiated
Experience. Citi is proud of our commitment and history of ~California Water and Wastewater Transactions
service to water and sewer utility issuers in the State of (January 1, 2008 — 2018YTD, $BLN)
California. Since January 2008, Citi has served as the #1 $10

water and wastewater utilities underwriter, with 127 senior 38

managed water and sewer revenue transactions issued in

California, totalling over $9.5 billion in par amount and a 6

market share of 17.5%. Both Jonathan Ash, SCVWA's Lead $4
Banker, and Cameron Parks, Head of Citi’'s Water $2
Infrastructure Group, specialize in water and sewer utility
finance and have deep experience which will be brought to $0
bear for the Agency’s 2019 issuance. We believe that our
commitment to the sector is evidenced by our consistent
rankings as a leading underwriter for water and sewer transactions in the State. More recently, as displayed in the
table below, since January 1, 2015, Citi has served as senior manager on a negotiated basis for California water
issuers on $3.4 billion of par across 42 transactions for total market share of 12%.

Lt

citi Stifel  JPM MS  BAML

Citi’s California Water and Sewer Underwriting Experience Since January 1, 2015
Negotiated Competitive Negotiated & Competitive
Par ($ mil) # Issues Par ($ mil) # Issues Par ($ mil) # Issues
3,400.3 42 60.7 3 3,461.0 45

V. Fees

1. Provide a detail of your proposed fees and expenses for the financing...

The adjacent tables detail our Maturity Takedown Proposed Underwriting Fees - $35 Million Par Amount

proposed underwriter's discount 2019-2027 $1.00 Proposed Gross Spread Per $1,000 Total
and breakdown based on a 5028-2030 $1.25 Average Takedow n $1.527 $51,925.00
senior managed fixed rate bond 50312033 $135 U'V'agage”,‘te”t ,Fgf 8-383 o ogg'gg
offering of the SCVWA's 2019 ™ 50342038 $1.50 Total Gross Spread $2.234  $76,020.76
. otal Gross Spreal 5 d b
Revenue Bonds. Citi's proposal [~ 55392049 $1.75
is based on a preliminary $35 ltemized Expenses Per $1,000 Total
million transaction size with a 30 year term. We have not | Underwriter's Counsel $0.204 $10,000.00
included any expenditure related to an electronic roadshow or I%igl’zéoa” 8'%3 5 ggg'g?
any travel, and would be asked to be reimbursed if those fees | prc 0.024 '800.00
were incurred. Our fees summarized in the adjacent table CDIAC 0.147 5,000.00
represent fair and compensation based on the recent | CUSP 0.040 1,354.50
comparable transactions in the marketplace. Should the | DPAC(Cont. Disclosure) 0.015 500.00
. . Travel / Out-of-Pocket 0.074 2,500.00
engagement, the financing process and/or structure of the [w5m Expenses $0.707 $24.095.76

transaCtion become more Complicated than presented in the (1) Does not include marketing expenses including use of a net roadshow or local

proposa| we would ask for an opportunity to requeSt advertisements. Per M SRB Rule G-20, all expenses charged in excess of those
o . . actually incurred will be rebated back. Expenses exclude those related to rating

compensation to remain commensurate with the resources ,jenc, meetings & pricing trips, it any.

committed to achieving the Agency’s objectives. However, we

do not want our fees to be the deciding factor in our selection, and we are prepared to discuss some or all of the

components of our proposed underwriter’s discount at the Agency’s request.

Additionally, we have included the cost of underwriter's counsel as a fixed expense item and propose using Brad
Patterson at Gilmore & Bell as Underwriter's Counsel in connection with the proposed offering. Should Gilmore &
Bell not be amenable to the Agency, Citi welcomes discussion of alternative counsels.

Bradley Patterson

Gilmore & Bell, P.C.

15 West South Temple, Suite 520
Salt Lake City, Utah 84101
801-364-5080

bpatterson@gilmorebell.com
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In any instance where distribution of this communication is subject to the rules of the US Commodity Futures Trading Commission (“CFTC”), this communication constitutes
an invitation to consider entering into a derivatives transaction under U.S. CFTC Regulations §§ 1.71 and 23.605, where applicable, but is not a binding offer to buy/sell any
financial instrument.

This presentation has been prepared by individual personnel of Citigroup Global Markets Inc., Citigroup Global Markets Limited or their subsidiaries or affiliates (collectively,
“Citi”). Such employees are not research analysts and are not subject to SEC or FSA rules designed to promote the independence of research and research analysts and
accordingly may receive compensation related to securities or products to which these materials relate. These materials may contain general market commentary and
excerpts of research; however they are not intended to constitute investment research, a research recommendation, research analysis or a research report for purposes of
such rules.

In connection with any proposed transaction, Citi will be acting solely as a principal and not as your agent, advisor, account manager or fiduciary. Citi has not assumed a
fiduciary responsibility with respect to the proposed transaction, and nothing in this or in any prior relationship between you and Citi will be deemed to create an advisory,
fiduciary or agency relationship between us in respect of a proposed transaction. You should consider carefully whether you would like to engage an independent advisor to
represent or otherwise advise you in connection with any proposed transaction, if you have not already done so.

Any terms set forth herein are intended for discussion purposes only and are subject to the final terms as set forth in separate definitive written agreements. This presentation
is not a commitment to lend, syndicate a financing, underwrite or purchase securities, or commit capital nor does it obligate us to enter into such a commitment. By accepting
this presentation, subject to applicable law or regulation, you agree to keep confidential the existence of and proposed terms for any contemplated transaction.

The provision of information in this presentation is not based on your individual circumstances and should not be relied upon as an assessment of suitability for you of a
particular product or transaction. Even if Citi possesses information as to your objectives in relation to any transaction, series of transactions or trading strategy, this will not be
deemed sufficient for any assessment of suitability for you of any transaction, series of transactions or trading strategy.

This presentation is provided for information purposes and is intended for your use only. Except in those jurisdictions where it is impermissible to make such a statement, Citi
hereby informs you that this presentation should not be considered as an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to purchase any securities or other financial products. This
presentation does not constitute investment advice and does not purport to identify all risks or material considerations which should be considered when undertaking a
transaction. Citi makes no recommendation as to the suitability of any of the products or transactions mentioned. Any trading or investment decisions you take are in reliance
on your own analysis and judgment and/or that of your advisors and not in reliance on us.

Certain transactions, including those involving swaps and options, give rise to substantial risk including the potential loss of the principal amount invested, and are not suitable
for all investors. Citi does not provide investment, accounting, tax, financial or legal advice; however, you should be aware that any proposed indicative transaction could have
accounting, tax, legal or other implications that should be discussed with your independent advisors. Therefore, prior to entering into any transaction, you should determine,
without reliance on Citi, the economic risks or merits, as well as the legal, tax and accounting characteristics and consequences of the transaction and that you are able to
assume these risks. By acceptance of these materials, you and Citi hereby agree that from the commencement of discussions with respect to any transaction, and
notwithstanding any other provision in this presentation, Citi hereby confirms that no participant in any transaction shall be limited from disclosing the U.S. tax treatment or
U.S. tax structure of such transaction.

This presentation is not intended to forecast or predict future events. Past performance is not a guarantee or indication of future results. Any estimates and opinions included
herein constitute Citi's judgment as of the date hereof and are subject to change without any notice. This presentation may contain "forward-looking" information. Such
information may include, but not be limited to, projections, forecasts or estimates of cash flows, yields or return, scenario analyses and proposed or expected portfolio
composition. Any forward-looking information is based upon certain assumptions about future events or conditions and is intended only to illustrate hypothetical results under
those assumptions (not all of which are specified herein or can be ascertained at this time). It does not represent actual termination or unwind prices that may be available to
you. Actual events or conditions are unlikely to be consistent with, and may differ significantly from, those assumed. lllustrative performance results may be based on
mathematical models that calculate those results by using inputs that are based on assumptions about a variety of future conditions and events and not all relevant events or
conditions may have been considered in developing such assumptions. Accordingly, actual results may vary and the variations may be substantial. The products or securities
identified in any of the illustrative calculations presented herein may therefore not perform as described and actual performance may differ, and may differ substantially, from
those illustrated in this material. When evaluating any forward looking information you should understand the assumptions used and, together with your independent advisors,
consider whether they are appropriate for your purposes.

Any securities or other financial products described herein may be subject to fluctuations of their mark-to market price or value. Such fluctuations may be substantial,
depending on the type of securities or other financial products and the financial environment. In addition certain securities described in the presentation may provide for
payments linked to or derived from prices or yields of one or more securities or other instruments or foreign currencies, and such provisions may result in negative fluctuations
in the value of and the amounts payable with respect to such securities prior to or at redemption. You should consider the implication of such fluctuation with your independent
accounting, tax and risk advisors.

Citi shall have no liability to you, the user or to third parties, for the quality, accuracy, timeliness, continued availability or completeness of the data nor for any special, direct,
indirect, incidental or consequential loss or damage which may be experienced because of the use of the information in this presentation or otherwise arising in connection
with this presentation, provided that this exclusion of liability shall not exclude or limit any liability under any law or regulation applicable to Citi that may not be excluded or
restricted. These materials are intended for distribution solely to customers of Citi in jurisdictions where such distribution is permitted. The information contained herein is
proprietary information of Citi and may not be reproduced or otherwise disseminated in whole or in part without Citi’s prior written consent.

Citi often acts as (i) a market maker; (i) an issuer of financial instruments and other products; and (iii) trades as principal in many different financial instruments and other
products, and can be expected to perform or seek to perform investment banking and other services for the issuer of such financial instruments or other products. The author
of this presentation may have discussed the information contained herein with others within or outside Citi and the author and/or such other Citi personnel may have already
acted on the basis of this information (including by trading for Citi's proprietary accounts or communicating the information contained herein to other customers of Citi). Citi,
Citi's personnel (including those with whom the author may have consulted in the preparation of this presentation), and other customers of Citi may be long or short the
financial instruments or other products referred to in this presentation, may have acquired such positions at prices and market conditions that are no longer available, and may
have interests different from or adverse to your interests.

Citi is required to obtain, verify and record certain information that identifies each entity that enters into a formal business relationship with Citi. Citi will ask for your complete
name, street address, and taxpayer ID number. Citi may also request corporate formation documents, or other forms of identification, to verify information provided.

Although Citibank, N.A. (together with its subsidiaries and branches worldwide, "Citibank") is an affiliate of Citi, you should be aware that none of the financial instruments or
other products mentioned in this presentation (unless expressly stated otherwise) are (i) insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other governmental
authority, or (ii) deposits or other obligations of, or guaranteed by, Citibank or any other insured depository institution.

IRS Circular 230 Disclosure: Citi and its employees are not in the business of providing, and do not provide, tax or legal advice to any taxpayer outside of Citi. Any statements
in this presentation regarding tax matters were not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used or relied upon, by any taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding tax
penalties. Any such taxpayer should seek advice based on the taxpayer’s particular circumstances from an independent tax advisor.

© 2018 Citigroup Global Markets Inc. Member SIPC. All rights reserved. Citi and Arc Design are trademarks and service marks of Citigroup Inc. or its affiliates and are used
and registered throughout the world.
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Disclaimer

This presentation was prepared exclusively for the benefit and internal use of the J.P. Morgan client to whom it is directly addressed and
delivered (including such client’s affiliates, the “Client”) in order to assist the Client in evaluating, on a preliminary basis, the feasibility of
possible transactions referenced herein. The materials have been provided to the Client for informational purposes only and may not be relied
upon by the Client in evaluating the merits of pursuing transactions described herein. No assurance can be given that any transaction
mentioned herein could in fact be executed.

Information has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable but J.P. Morgan does not warrant its completeness or accuracy. Opinions
and estimates constitute our judgment as of the date of this material and are subject to change without notice. Past performance is not
indicative of future results. Any financial products discussed may fluctuate in price or value. This presentation does not constitute a
commitment by any J.P. Morgan entity to underwrite, subscribe for or place any securities or to extend or arrange credit or to provide any
other services.

J.P. Morgan's presentation is delivered to you for the purpose of being engaged as an underwriter, not as an advisor, (including, without
limitation, a Municipal Advisor (as such term is defined in Section 975(e) of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection
Act)) . The role of an underwriter and its relationship to an issuer of debt is not equivalent to the role of an independent financial advisor. The
primary role of an underwriter is to purchase, or arrange for the purchase of, securities in an arm’s-length commercial transaction between the
issuer and the underwriter. An underwriter has financial and other interests that differ from those of the issuer. If selected as your underwriter,
J.P. Morgan will be acting as a principal and not as your agent or your fiduciary with respect to the offering of the securities or the process
leading to issuance (whether or not J.P. Morgan or any affiliate has advised or is currently advising the Client on other matters). Any portion
of this presentation which provides information on municipal financial products or the issuance of municipal securities is given in response to
your questions or to demonstrate our experience in the municipal markets and does not constitute “advice” within the meaning of Section 975
of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act. We encourage you to consult with your own legal and financial advisors
to the extent you deem appropriate in connection with the offering of the securities. If you have any questions concerning our intended role
and relationship with you, we would be happy to discuss this with you further.

This communication shall not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the securities in any
state or jurisdiction in which such an offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful prior to registration or qualification under the securities laws of
any such state or jurisdiction.

This material is not a product of the Research Departments of J.P. Morgan Securities LLC ("JPMS") and is not a research report. Unless
otherwise specifically stated, any views or opinions expressed herein are solely those of the authors listed, and may differ from the views and
opinions expressed by JPMS's Research Departments or other departments or divisions of JPMS and its affiliates. Research reports and
notes produced by the Research Departments of JPMS are available from your Registered Representative or at http:/www.jpmm.com.
JPMS’s policies prohibit employees from offering, directly or indirectly, a favorable research rating or specific price target, or offering to
change a rating or price target, to a subject Client as consideration or inducement for the receipt of business or for compensation. JPMS also
prohibits its research analysts from being compensated for involvement in investment banking transactions except to the extent that such
participation is intended to benefit investors.

J.P. Morgan makes no representations as to the legal, tax, credit, or accounting treatment of any transactions mentioned herein, or any other
effects such transactions may have on you and your affiliates or any other parties to such transactions and their respective affiliates. You
should consult with your own advisors as to such matters.

JPMorgan Chase & Co. and its affiliates do not provide tax, legal or accounting advice. This material has been prepared for informational
purposes only, and is not intended to provide, and should not be relied on as the basis for making an investment decision nor as tax, legal or
accounting advice. You should consult your own advisors in respect of any tax, legal or accounting matter.

This presentation does not carry any right of publication or disclosure, in whole or in part, to any other party, without the prior consent of J.P.
Morgan. Additional information is available upon request.

J.P. Morgan is the marketing name for the investment banking activities of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., J.P. Morgan Securities LLC (member,
NYSE), J.P. Morgan Securities plc (authorized by the FSA and member, LSE) and their investment banking affiliates.

J.PMorgan
72


http://www.jpmm.com/

SANTA CLARITA WATER AGENCY

CONFIDENTIAL

Municipal Advisor Rules Disclaimer

(@) This material is provided to you in reliance on the RFP exemption pursuant to Section 15B of the Securities Exchange Act, as amended; (b)
J.P. Morgan is not acting as an advisor to you and does not owe a fiduciary duty pursuant to Section 15B of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, to you with respect to the information and material contained in this communication; (c) J.P. Morgan is acting for its own
interests; (d) You should discuss any information and material contained in this communication with any and all internal or external advisors
and experts that you deem appropriate before acting on this information or material; and (e) J.P. Morgan seeks to serve as an underwriter on
a future transaction and not as a financial advisor or municipal advisor. The information provided is for discussion purposes only in anticipation
of being engaged to serve as underwriter. The primary role of an underwriter is to purchase securities with a view to distribution in an arm’s-
length commercial transaction. The underwriter has financial and other interests that differ from yours.

One or more of the services included in this Request for Qualifications may be considered municipal advisory activities under the final rules
(SEC Rel. No. 34-70462 (Sept. 20, 2013)) (such final rules and to the extent referenced therein, Section 975, the "Municipal Advisor Rules"),
implementing Section 975 ("Section 975") of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act. We may not be able to
perform some of the services you may request of us from time to time in connection with the engagement on which you are requesting
qualifications, unless we have confirmed that such requested services do not cause us to be considered a "municipal advisor" under the
Municipal Advisor Rules or are otherwise excluded or exempt under the Municipal Advisor Rules. We are responding to the RFP to serve as
an underwriter, and not as a municipal advisor. Any certifications, guarantees, warranties and agreements, with respect to our ability to
perform the services described in the RFP or otherwise requested by you in connection with this engagement are hereby qualified and may
only be performed to the extent that any such services may be performed without causing us to be considered a "municipal advisor" under the
Municipal Advisor Rules.
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November 12, 2018

Eric Campbell Robert Porr
Chief Financial and Administrative Officer Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency

Mr. Campbell and Mr. Porr,

On behalf of J.P. Morgan Securities LLC (“J.P. Morgan”), thank you for the opportunity to respond to Santa Clarita
Valley Water Agency’s (‘the Agency’s”) Request for Qualifications and Proposals for Underwriting Services. We
hope that the response provided herein demonstrates our commitment to the California water landscape and we
very much hope that we will be able to work with the Agency on this financing.

Make no mistake, there is no other underwriter doing more in the Californiawater, Sewer, & Utilities Negotiated League
Table (2015 — 2018)

California Water space than J.P. Morgan and specifically the bankers _ Par Mkt No. of
assigned to the Agency’s team. To date in 2018 we are the #1 —TgX—aiemuer R

1 J.P. Morgan $4,185.8 18.2% 28

: H H . H H 2 BAML 3,5632.4 15.4% 43
underwriter of California Water/Wastewater finance having just 5 Mo Sty 26156 1140 28
Y H : H H 4 Citi 2,534.0 11.0% 42
finalized a $215mm transaction for the State of California Department 5 Wels Fargo Soesr e p
of Water Resources and a $415 million transaction for the San ~ § = SodmenSachs 10784 47% "
Francisco Public Utilities Commission while also acting as Structuring 8 St 937 42% 4
. . . . , 9 Barclays ) 935.8 4.1% 7

Agent and Interim Note Financing Underwriter on the SFPUC’s WIFIA 10 RBCCapitalMarke  870.3  3.8% 7

euters from 01/01/2015 to 10/31/2018; SDC Use of Proceeds: Water &
ue Ecol i Bookrui 3 Incl otes.

loan and with further experience recently remarketing Metropolitan S s Eomne timss T Econarics o aknner: e ot
Water District's $175 million floating rate notes at the tightest levels to date. This comes off many years ranking as
#1 in the municipal water, sewer & combined utility space.

Structurally we are proposing a transaction which accomplishes the Agency’s goals while taking advantage of what
the market is currently providing. We continue to see California near term paper sell very well in the market as
investors want to stay short to manage potential rate increases over time. That phenomenon is lessened on the
long end of the market where investors are less likely to put their money to work at these low overall levels. As you
will see herein, we are proposing the Agency pursue either a level debt service or wrapped structure for its 2019
new money issuance. In an environment where rising short-term interest rates and an overall flattening of the curve
are predicted as probably by the Street's research departments, we believe it makes sense for the Agency to
monitor the economics of both structures in partnership with its lead underwriter, and make a final decision about
how to structure amortization based on market conditions in the Spring of 2019. We have also provided our rate
views for the Agency, based on a 10-year par call and 7-year par call, and believe it is worthwhile for the Agency to
think through the tradeoff presented by non-traditional optional redemption strategies.

We have been pleased to respond to the Agency’s last several RFPs and we are keen to work with the Agency
again, having not done so since 2016 when we co-managed Castaic Lake’s 2016 Revenue bonds. Thank you once
again for the opportunity to respond to this RFP and we hope very much that we have the opportunity to work with
the Agency on this transaction.

Sincerely,

John Houlberg Will Frymann

Executive Director Executive Director
john.houlberg@jpmorgan.com will.frymann@jpmorgan.com
(415) 315-5958 (415) 315-3901
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Il. Questions

Describe your firm’s retail and institutional sales capability related to tax-exempt financings.

J.P. Morgan’s Distribution Network. J.P. Morgan has one of the broadest  californiaRetail Distribution
and most comprehensive distribution platforms of any Wall Street firm in both
the tax-exempt and taxable markets, and our underwriting contribution will be
in both the institutional and retail markets. J.P. Morgan’s institutional sales
capabilities are divided into three key segments. As a result, J.P. Morgan is
able to market bonds to Tier 1, 2 and 3 institutional investors, as well as retail
buyers. Additionally, our relationships with the large institutions and their
SMA accounts provide our clients with access to a massive pool of -
professional retail buyers. Below, we provide a detailed look at the various .
components of our municipal distribution platform:

Institutional Capabilities. Our institutional sales force covers every major
domestic market and all major mutual funds, investment advisors, bank trust '« & weues
departments and insurance companies. Accordingly, J.P. Morgan has B Bt
developed close relationships with the 500 largest institutional buyers in the

municipal market, forging deep relationships with portfolio managers and their credit analysts. In today’s market, it is
important not only to market to bond funds, but to other investor classes as well, including insurance companies,
asset managers, bank portfolios and bank trusts. The ability to distribute bonds to a variety of investors across the
yield curve helps to ensure execution at the time of sale under what can sometimes be challenging market

conditions.

Retail Coverage and Distribution. Individual and professionally managed retail accounts are playing an
increasingly influential role in municipal bond pricings. Given its relatively high state income tax, California in
particular displays one of the most active retail markets in the industry. One thing that is often overlooked is J.P.
Morgan’s retail distribution capabilities, especially in California. J.P. Morgan is very committed to the retail banking
market in California, and one only needs to look at the aggressive expansion of the Chase brand in California to see
how important the retail customer is to J.P. Morgan here.

Distribution Agreements. J.P. Morgan Securities LLC has entered into negotiated dealer agreements (each, a
"Dealer Agreement") with each of Charles Schwab & Co., Inc. and LPL Financial LLC for the retail distribution of
certain securities offerings at the original issue prices. Pursuant to each Dealer Agreement (if consented to by the
Agency and applicable to this transaction), each of Charles Schwab & Co., Inc. and LPL Financial LLP will purchase
Bonds from J.P. Morgan Securities LLC at the original issue price less a negotiated portion of the selling concession
applicable to any Bonds that such firm sells.

Our exclusive distribution agreements with Charles Schwab and LPL Financial provide us with access to a retail
platform with over $3 trillion in total assets. In particular, Charles Schwab, which is a particularly recognized brand in
California, makes the firm an excellent complement to the Agency’s financing because the Agency receives access
to all of the Schwab clients and their marketing through J.P. Morgan.

Underwriting Capability. With over $200 billion in total capital, JPMorgan Chase & Co. is one of the largest
financial institutions in the world, the largest in the United States, and one of the highest rated domestic banks with
ratings of A3/A-/A+. J.P. Morgan frequently uses this capital strength to support new issuance and remarketing
transactions on behalf of municipal issuers. J.P. Morgan Securities LLC had over $10.7 billion of excess net capital
as of December 31, 2017. J.P. Morgan’s balance sheet has been a source of strength for the firm and our clients.
J.P. Morgan continues to commit capital to help our clients achieve their financial goals and objectives in the current
market. Our strong capitalization allows us to maintain pricing support for issuers and the ability to stand behind our
price views and take bonds into inventory if warranted to preserve transaction spreads. J.P. Morgan's ability to
underwrite bonds is ultimately a business decision that relates to our firm's commitment to municipal issuers and the
overall risk management of the firm, which is not limited by a set capital constraint.

1 J.PMorgan
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Please provide an example of your firm’s pricing of an AA-rated California water transaction for a par amount in a range of $30 - $45
million completed within the last six months.

As we identified above, J.P. Morgan is the number one underwriter of California Water and Wastewater paper.
While getting to number one has required doing several large high profile transactions, we treat each transaction the
same whether large or small. We regularly do transactions in the $20-45 million range for issuers across the country
and also recently led a sale for the City of Sunnyvale and its water/wastewater transaction in December 2017.

CITY OF SUNNYVALE 2017 WATER AND WASTEWATER REVENUE BONDS

City of Sunnyvale On December 19, 2017, J.P. Morgan served as senior manager for two refunding
Waterand Wastewater transactions on behalf of the City of Sunnyvale’s (the “City”) Water and Wastewater Systems
i\\"’//, (collectively, the “2017 bonds”): $17,630,000 aggregate principal amount of Water Revenue
‘v‘ Refunding Bonds, Series 2017A and 2017-AT; and $24,620,000 aggregate principal amount
Sunnyvale of Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017A and 2017A-T. The 2017 Bonds
$42.250.000 were issued as traditional fixed rate bonds, with taxable and tax-exempt series and a call
December a290e1r8 date of 4/1/2028, and secured by a pledge of net revenues. Neither the 2017 Water Bonds

nor the 2017 Wastewater Bonds were secured by a debt service reserve fund.

With an increasing likelihood that tax reform eliminating tax-exempt advance refundings would go into effect in 2018,
in late 2017 the City decided to move forward with J.P. Morgan as underwriter for an advance refunding of their
2010 Water and Wastewater bonds. J.P. Morgan and the financing team performed a multipurpose allocation
analysis determining the amount of 2010 bonds which would be refundable on a tax-exempt basis, prepared ratings
agency presentations to Moody’s and S&P, oversaw the drafting of two Official Statements covering four series of
bonds, completed underwriter due diligence, and prepared a structure and pricing scale to bring to the market.

With many issuers rushing to the market before tax reform took effect, the municipal market absorbed $64 billion of
supply in December 2017, setting a new record for monthly supply. On the day of pricing, MMD rose 3-6bps across
the curve. In these pricing conditions, J.P. Morgan was able to sell sub-5% coupons on both the water and
wastewater side. J.P. Morgan underwrote a portion of the 2017 bonds in support of the transaction. The 2017 bonds
resulted in $2,651,029 NPV savings (14.3% of refunded par) on the Water side, and $3,269,553 NPV savings (12.6%
of refunded par) on the Wastewater side, for the City.

CITY OF OXNARD 2018 WATER AND WASTEWATER REVENUE BONDS

This week we will be in the market with an AA-rated California water transaction, acting as Senior Manager on the
City of Oxnard’s approximately $40 million 2018 Water System Revenue Bonds (S&P: A underlying / AA insured). In
a concurrent process, we are acting as Senior Manager for the City of Oxnard’s approximately $25 million 2018
Wastewater System Revenue Bonds (S&P: A- underlying / AA insured). The Water transaction will refund the
fixed-rate Water Series 2006 bonds, and the Wastewater transaction will refund the fixed-rate Wastewater Series
2006 Bonds and variable-rate 2004B bonds, as well as terminate the associated interest-rate swap. As a result of
the 2018 transaction, among other things, the Wastewater System was able to achieve a two-notch upgrade from
BBB to A-. We look forward to entering the market this week with the Oxnard credits, and are happy to update the
Agency with the results of those transactions when they are complete.

We would also like to highlight our work on the California Department of Water Resources Series AZ bonds, which
highlights our distribution and underwriting capabilities, even in more challenging market conditions.

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES SERIES AZ

I California Depart t of Water R
Calfornia Deptof water | ON October 10, 2018, J.P. Morgan .~ Ty —
Resources H Tax Status Tax-Exempt
(AT Served as Semolr n'.lanager for the Structure Fixed rate serial bonds maturing 2019-2035
Ve $215,295,000 California Department of ~ Coupons 3.000% - 5.000%
H & . Yields 1.70% - 3.14%
& ﬁ Water ~ Resources, — Series ~ AZ  Raings wisip)  Aat/AAA/NR
OREELE . ) ) .
615,905,000 (Aa1/AAA/NR) The SerIeS AZ bondS Efgv?sr?opr::):n Optional redemption on December 1, 2028
October 2018 were issued to refund a portion of the -PricinaDate October 10, 2018
Senior Manager

Department’s outstanding CommerCiaI 10-Year MMD vs. 10-Year DWR Yield over the Course of Pricing
. . . —=—10-YearInt MMD  —®—Yield on AZ 2028 Maturi
paper notes, and refund all of the outstanding Series AF and AY 2 e o -

275 1
bonds. The Series AZ Bonds were sold across a retail order 270 ..-/’Tmbps

-14 bps spread
265 \L-10 bps spread \L PSSP spread

period on Tuesday, Oct. 9 and an institutional order period on 260 M -
Wednesday, Oct. 10. Markets were volatile during the week of 2% ]

2.50 T d
October 5 October 9 October 10
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pricing. The prior week saw 5Y, 10Y and 30Y Treasury yields increase 12bps, 17bps and 19bps on stronger-than
anticipated economic data, the largest one week sell off since February.

On Tuesday, Oct. 9, in the municipal market, customer bid lists weighed on the secondary and MMD was cut 2bps
2019-2026, 3bps in 2027, 4bps 2028-2039, and 5bps thereafter. On Wednesday, Oct. 10, stock markets suffered
their worst single-day since February on trade tensions. MMD continued to rise, being cut 2bps in 2024, 3bps 2025-
2033, 4bps in 2034 and 5bps thereafter. The Retail Order Period on Oct. 9 was very successful, with orders for over
90% of bonds by the end of the retail period, Overall, J.P. Morgan brought in $372,825,000 retail orders. Due to the
strength of the book built over the course of the Retail Order Period, J.P. Morgan was able to hold yields steady in a
difficult market environment. In the reprice, J.P. Morgan was able to bump 4bps in 2019, 2bps in 2023-2025, and
1bp in 2028 at the reprice. 5s in 2023 came 21bps through AAA MMD, 5s in 2028 were 18bps through AAA MMD,
and 5s in 2035 were 4bps through AAA MMD.

Discuss your ideas on various call features that may be recommendable for the Agency’s proposed transaction.

Optional Redemption Features. ~ With the sy “Couon Soea Ve VR Coon Soemt e vne “viea  vmi
imi i i 08/01/2020  4.00% -18 1.93%  1.93% 4.00% -18 1.93%  1.93% -
elimination of advance refundlngs thrOUgh tax reform, 08/012021  500% 20  1.98%  198%  500% 20  198%  1.98%
L : 08/012022  500% 20  2.05%  2.05% 500% 20  205%  2.05%
taX'exempt munICIpaI ISsuers are more Commonly 0BIOU2023  5.00% 8 2.15%  2.15%  500% -8 2.15%  2.15%
. . .. 08/012024  500% 15 226%  226%  500% 15 226%  2.26%
seIIIng debt with shorter call provisions — anyWhere 08012025  500% 12 237%  237%  500% 12 237%  237% -
g . 08/01/2026  5.00% 8 250%  250%  500% 13 245%  245% 5 5
from five to nine years at par On the upper end of oeouzzr so0% 4 262% 262%  500% -4 25%  277% 10 15
! ’ 08/01/2028  5.00% 2 273% 273%  500% 12 263%  3.06% 10 3
1 101 n-l 1 i 08/01/2029  5.00% - 284%  2.84% 5.00% -10 2.74%  3.29% -10 45
this range, pricing tends to be in-line with a 10 Year ooz oo 2 293%  3.07%  500% -8 283%  347% -10 40
B / 08/01/2031  5.00% 4 3.00%  3.25%  500% -6 290%  3.61% 10 36
par call bond, while a f|Ve'year par call could COSt  Guomome 5o & soex asen o 4 seen a7 BT
. . . 08/01/2033  5.00% 8 313%  354%  500% 2 303%  3.83% 10 30
between 20 and 80 basis pOIntS on a erld-tO- 08/01/2034  5.00% 10 3.20%  365%  500% - 310%  3.93% 10 27
. . . X 08/01/2035  5.00% 12 3271%  376%  5.00% 2 347%  4.01% 10 2
matunty basis dependmg on the matunty date. The osonzess  so0% 15 335%  3.86% 5.00% 5 3.25%  4.09% 10 2
! 08/01/2037  5.00% 15 3.39%  393%  5.00% 5 3.29%  4.14% 10 21
5

graphic to the right depicts this dynamic, showing e sooe 1o sém e oo
how a 7-year par call bond will price through 10-year oo S i S S

. . . . . 08/01/2042 - - - - - - - - - -
par Ca” bond, Wlth the yleld-to-maturlty lekIng gggx;gﬁ 5.00% 18 357%  4.19% 5.00% 10 3.49%  4.36% 8 16

between 15-45 basis points higher. 0810112085

08/01/2046

3.33% 4.19% -10 20

08/01/2047

We believe that SCVWA would be well-served by 0BOV2048 _ 500 18 36w 429%  _500% 13 a5r% 445 5
evaluating the pricing impact of these alternative redemption features closer to the date of pricing, as we understand
that it may only find these options compelling based on the cost versus its view of the likelihood to execute a
refunding inside of 10 years, given that leaving a short call bond outstanding past the call date would ultimately
result in a higher yield-to maturity.

In light of the current conditions in the municipal marketplace, discuss your structuring and overall marketing approach for the 2019
Bonds. Provide your firm’s forecast of tax-exempt interest rates for the remainder of the year and through June, 2019.

STRUCTURING APPROACH

As SCVWA develops the financing strategy for the
proposed refunding and new money transaction,
various current and future market dynamics ~40% 7 —S=FOMC Forecast

should be taken into consideration, as they —a—Market Forward Curve

directly affect structuring, marketing, and capacity ~ 3-5% 1 3.400% 3.400%
of the offering. Short-term rates have increased

substantially over the last year, long-term rates 3% 1

FOMC dots vs. market expectations

have remained relatively low, and lower-than- = 2.802%
typical municipal supply post tax-reform has = #°%

resulted in a meaningful tightening of credit s

spreads. With the additional benefit California  *“oay IV IV PV oo

Issuers are Seemg from Changes to taX |aW - Source: FOMC year-end Fed Funds Rate projections, 9/26/2018. Market forward curve, 11/5/2018;
notab|y, the Cap on the State and Loca| TaX J.P. Morgan Research, US Fixed Income Markets Weekly, 11/2/2018, jpmm.com; Forecasts as of

. . . . 11/2/2018; Note: JPM Research forecasts: 4 hikes in 2018 and 4 in 2019
(“SALT”) deduction — there is a strong incentive to
enter the market quickly with a structure that takes advantage of the relationship between short- and long-term rates.
While the last three months have seen a moderate increase in rates across the curve, the lack of robust supply and
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the benefit investors are currently providing California paper still  jpm u.S. Treasury Interest Rate Forecast (%)
makes overall levels quite attractive and the market favorable for

12/2/18  12/31/18  3/31/19 6/30/19

SCVWA's offering. -
. . L . . ahead 4Q18 1Q19 2Q19
Moving forward, the market is predicting that the Fed will continue to e, Forecast  Forecast  Forecast
take rate action, with one more increase to the Fed Funds rate Ejﬂds 2.15% 2.40% 2.65% 2.90%
expected at the December FOMC meeting. J.P. Morgan Research E.“QOR — — o .

forecasts that the Fed Funds rates will end 2018 at 2.40%.While we

. . 2Y UST 2.95% 3.05% 3.20% 3.35%

expect short-term rates to continue to increase, we do not see a
H 5Y UST 3.05% 3.10% 3.20% 3.35%

commensurate impact on the long-end of the curve. As you see
10Y UST 3.20% 3.20% 3.30% 3.40%

below, J.P. Morgan Research’s rate forecast for tax-exempt yields
projects near-term decreases in long-term yields, with 30-year rates ~ 30YUST  330%  3.30%

remaining range bOUnd even a year from NOW. Source: J.P. Morgan Research, US Fixed Income Markets Weekly,
11/2/2018, jpmm.com; Rates as of 11/2/2018

In this environment of probable rising rates and a flattening yield  jpm Tax-Exempt Yield Forecast (%)
curve, and given the Agency’s plan at the time of the issuance of the

3.30% 3.40%

12/2/18 12/31/18 3/31/19 6/30/19

2018A bonds to issue new money bonds in 2019 and 2021, we " o o oo
believe the agency should carefully consider how it decides to ~ AsMMD ahead = & Forecast Forecast
structure the 2019 New Money bonds. We see two alternative v 215%  245%  235%  2.40%
structures available to the Agency which should drive the discussion. 5y vss 2s5%  2s0%  255%
1. Level Debt Service 107 2.75% 2.75% 2.90% 2.90%
2. Wrap Structure around Existing Debt Service. 3oy 330%  326%  330%  335%
As depicted i the tables below, under current assumptions, a 30-year —isrra 5S¢ sseew  sren  esa

bond deal structured for level debt service would result in a total 3 Ruw  10000%  s4s%  10000% 9853

interest cost to the Agency of 3.951%, and does little to change the

descending stair-step shape of the Agency’s existing debt service. In  Wancpats, 1128016, . com: Retes a5 of 122018 "~
this structure, the Agency would pay approximately $2.29 million in

debt service per year.

2019 Bonds (Level Debt Service ) and Existing Wholesale System Parity Debt Service
3000 u Parity Debt Service  ®2019 Principal = 2019 Interest Dated Date 5/1/2019

g 2500 First Call 8/1/2029
g ’ TIC 3.951%
20.00 Average Life 18.63
15.00 2019 Bonds Total DS $67,593,563
10.00 2019 Bonds MADS $2,288,375
5.00 System MADS $27,290,140
System MADS Year 2021

O
PPN GV oD o o0 o0 A oD D 1O W (gD G 30 O K 3D 1O

22D P oV P g P 40 W
SOSE NG NG NG SO N NS SIIC I NS S I I SIS SIS S SIS S S I S S

Alternatively, the Agency could consider a Wrap structure, with all of the principal amortization of the bonds
occurring in years FY 2036-2049. Under this scenario, debt service would be interest only, $1.75 million in fiscal
years 2020-2036, with debt service increasing to an average of $3.74 million in fiscal years 2037-39. The total
interest cost for a wrap structure would be approximately 4.20% under current assumptions.

2019 Bonds (Wrap Structure) and Existing Wholesale System Parity Debt Service Summary Statistics Wrap Structure
30.00 = Parity Debt Service = 2019 Principal = 2019 Interest Dated Date 5/1/2019
g First Call 8/1/2029
S 25.00
= TIC 4.207%
= 20,00 -

: Average Life 24.52
15.00 2019 Bonds Total DS $77,903,000
10.00 B 2019 Bonds MADS $5,401,750

soo MEERRRRBRRRRRRRRRR R E s aaadmi l I System MADS $26,751,790
B System MADS Year 2021
OO T~ N O T W O DO0VWDDO -~ AN M T W O WODHDO —~ AN M T WL O NN 0D
= AN AN AN AN AN AN AN NN AN M MMM OMm®MO®MO0®0SS I ST T ST
SER&IJICIKILEIKIRIEIRICRIEEIRRIKIRER

While the economics of the level debt service scenario are currently more appealing than the wrap currently, if near-
term interest rates rise and the curve flattens over the course of the next year, this dynamic will shift. The
backloaded approach also allows for more optionality as more of the bonds would be refundable in the future. We
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would continue to monitor all structural alternatives in collaboration with the Agency’s Financial Advisor, maintain
flexibility, and make ultimate structural decisions based on market conditions nearer to the time of pricing.

PROPOSED MARKETING APPROACH

Our proposed marketing plan is predicated on capitalizing on scarcity value for highly rated California water revenue
bonds that currently exists.

We would suggest getting a notice of sale out to the market as soon as practical with high level details about the
offering, as well as a preliminary pricing date/week, so that investors are well aware this deal is coming in advance
and conversations can begin with them as soon as possible. We will focus on ensuring this deal is viewed as a
marquee transaction that investors will have an opportunity to purchase before the year closes. In addition, we
would propose the following steps:

An Early Release of the Preliminary Official Statement will allow investors to spend much more time analyzing
the credit and bond security before the decision to place an order, which is important in today’s market. Kicking off
the investor marketing process 7 days prior to pricing will not only allow investors time for diligence, but will also give
the sales force time to educate investors and respond to their questions.

Investor Net Roadshow Given the size of the Agency’s transaction J.P. Morgan recommends the use of a slides-
only net roadshow for this transaction, which can help add value by educating the investor base about the Water
credit and be cost effective. Furthermore, given the high ratings and depending on demand for the Agency’s time,
this presentation can either be recorded or simply posted without a recording, which we have seen become more
common in today’s market.

One-on-One Investor Calls and Follow-Ups J.P. Morgan would work with the Agency’s Municipal Advisor to
facilitate one-on-one calls with investors to address any questions that investors may have.
Emphasizing Outreach to Retail Investors will be a key aspect of securing lower borrowing costs. J.P. Morgan

will utilize its vast retail network and work with other syndicate members to ensure that both in-state and out-of-state
retail investors are educated on the transaction to garner the highest level of retail interest.

The Agency could consider an in-person national roadshow
with a formal presentation to investors but we believe that given
the size of the transaction and investor knowledge of many of
the issues facing California water agencies we would not need
to meet with investors.

Expanding the Agency’s Investor Base. Our focus would be
to expand the Agency’s investor base. Some of the top
investors in California tax-exempt paper are already holders of
the Agency’s bonds, including TIAA-CREF and Franklin, but we
would look to bring in top institutional holders of tax-exempt
California Water Revenue Bonds, and recent buyers of tax-
exempt California Water Revenue Bonds like Vanguard,
BlackRock, Fidelity and Eaton Vance.

lll. Qualifications

m TIAA-CREF

® Franklin

m Thornburg

Top Existing Holders
= Loews

m GSAM

® Vanguard
m BlackRock

m Alliance Bernstein Top Holders of CA
Water Revenue Bonds

® Northern Trust

m Capital Group

m General Electric .
Active

Investors of CA
Tax-Exempt Water

m Fidelity

® Eaton Vance

Investor Targets
= TIAA-CREF

® Franklin

® Thornburg

= Loews

= GSAM

® Vanguard

= BlackRock

= Alliance Bernstein
= Northern Trust
m Capital Group

= General Electric
= Fidelity

= Eaton Vance

List or summarize your firm’s experience as senior manager for California-based water enterprise revenue bonds in the last 3 years.

There is no other underwriter doing more in the California Water California Water, Sewer, & Utilities Negotiated League

Table (2015 — 2018)

space than J.P. Morgan and specifically the bankers assigned to Par

Mkt. No. of
y : . i $

SCVWA's team. To date in 2018 we are the #1 underwriter of — 1 —5p vear  Siisss w2 25
California Water/Wastewater finance having just finalized a $215 5 Mowmswney  soise  1rd b
0 . . . 4 Citi 2,534.0 11.0% 42
million transaction for the State of California Department of Water 5 Wl Fargo Yo oey pis
Resources, leading a $415 million transaction for the San Francisco o opmansechs 10T AT "
Public Utilities Commission while also acting as Structuring Agent and oo 9T 2% “°
. . . . ) arclays ) 935.8 4.1% 7
Interim Note Financing Underwriter on the SFPUC’s WIFIA loan and 10 RBCCapitalMarke 8703 3.8% 7

Source: Thomson Reuters from 01/01/2015 to 10/31/2018; SDC Use of Proceeds: Water &

Sewer and Combined Utilities; True Economics to Bookrunner; Includes Notes
5 J.PMorgan
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with further experience recently remarketing Metropolitan Water District's $175 million floating rate notes at the
tightest levels to date. Over the past three years, we are also the number one underwriter of California Water, Sewer
and Combined Utilities Negotiated Transactions, with over $4.18 billion in par and 18.2% market share.

Provide a proposed project team, including your underwriter, including the resumes and roles of each team member.

J.P. Morgan maintains one of the largest Public Finance Core Banking Investment Banking Team
presences in the West and the Bay Area, with two Public  |EEEGREEk S Evcuts Discor
Finance offices in the State of California. The Firm has a San Francisco, CA San Francisco, CA
total of 11 public finance bankers based in San ralyt & Transacion Sppor

Francisco and Sacramento dedicated to serving a wide San Franciseo, C4

variety of clients throughout the State. The Municipal Syndicate Investor Marketing

accompanying table shows the members of our
proposed financing team.

SCVWA'’s day-to-day contact will be John Houlberg, Executive Director and

Head of the Western Region Water, who will ensure that the full resources of JPMorgan
the Firm are leveraged on behalf of SCVYWA. Mr. Houlberg brings over 11 L s o0 Mission Steet
years of municipal finance experience serving major issuers on the west ’

coast, including the State of California Department of Water Resources, San e oo
Francisco Public Utilities Commission, Los Angeles Unified School District, john.houlberg@jpmorgan.com

San Diego Association of Governments, San Diego County Water Authority,
East Bay Municipal Utility District, and Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, among others.

Will Frymann, Executive Director, brings extensive has experience with many of the most complex financings in
California public utilities as well as some of the more complex financings in the municipal marketplace. Will has
served the State of California Department of Water Resources, San Francisco Public Utilities Commission, Riverside
Public Utilities, and Sacramento Municipal Utility District, among others.

Spencer Barton, Vice President, Long-Term Underwriting, will serve SCVWA as lead underwriter on any long-term
financings. Spencer brings SCVWA extensive background underwriting California-based transactions. Spencer is
located in J.P. Morgan’s New York City office.

Marshall Kitain, Executive Director and Head of Investor Marketing, will work closely with SCVWA, its advisor, and
J.P. Morgan’s banking team in reaching a broad investor base and communicating the strengths of SCYWA'’s credit.
Marshall’s focus will be on leveraging J.P. Morgan’s proprietary data and distribution network to build a broad order
book on behalf of SCVWA.

Full resumes for our banking team, underwriter and investor marketing leads are available in Appendix A.

Provide each team member’s experience over the last 3 years with: California water enterprise revenue bonds, revenue certificates
of participation and note/highlight tax-exempt transactions (senior managed transactions only).

Sale Par Amount Issuer State  Series Negotiated / Taxable / Tax-  Team

Date $MM Competitive Exempt

Upcoming (11/14/18) 60.00 City of Oxnard CA 2018 Water and 2018 Wastewater N E Houlberg, Barton

10/10/18 215.295 California Dept of Wtr Resources CA Series AZ N E Houlberg, Frymann, Kitain
07/18/18 185.950 San Francisco City/Co Public Util Comm CA 2018 Series B N E Houlberg, Frymann, Barton, Kitain
07/18/18 229.050 San Francisco City/Co Public Util Comm  CA 2018 Series A N E Houlberg, Frymann, Barton, Kitain
12/19/117 5.620 Sunnyvale City-California CA Series 2017 A-T N T Houlberg, Frymann, Kitain
12/19/17 10.585 Sunnyvale City-California CA Series 2017 A-T N T Houlberg, Frymann, Kitain
12/19/117 12.010 Sunnyvale City-California CA Series 2017 A N E Houlberg, Frymann, Kitain
12/19/117 14.035 Sunnyvale City-California CA Series 2017 A N E Houlberg, Frymann, Kitain
05/10/17 238.015 So California Metro Water Dt CA 2017 Series A C E Houlberg, Frymann, Kitain
10/06/16 893.820 San Francisco City/Co Public Utii Comm  CA 2016 Subser A&B N E Houlberg, Frymann, Kitain
05/25/16 564.025 San Diego Public Facs Fin Auth CA Series 2016 A & B N E Houlberg, Frymann, Kitain
05/10/16 67.820 San Francisco City/Co Public Util Comm  CA 2016 Series B (o] E Houlberg, Frymann, Kitain
05/10/16 240.580 San Francisco City/Co Public Util Comm  CA 2016 Series A C E Houlberg, Frymann, Kitain
05/03/16 24.840 Placer Co Water Agency CA Series 2016 (o] E Houlberg, Frymann, Kitain
04/26/16 33.385 Otay Water Dt CA Series 2016 C E Houlberg, Frymann, Kitain
03/17/16 54.970 Santa Clara Valley Water Dt CA Series 2016 D N T Houlberg, Frymann, Kitain
03/17/16 75.215 Santa Clara Valley Water Dt CA Series 2016 B N T Houlberg, Frymann, Kitain
02/25/16 20.295 Lodi Public Finance Auth CA 2016 Series A N E Houlberg, Frymann, Barton, Kitain

Denotes Tax Exempt

6 J.PMorgan
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Provide a detail of your proposed fees and expenses for the financing, and any assumptions used in deriving this fee structure.
Include takedowns broken out by maturity. For consistency of comparison, please assume a par amount of $35 million with a 30

year term.

Typically, underwriting takedowns are meant to reflect payment
commensurate with both the degree of work involved in bringing a
sale to market and the fair, market-based fee that an underwriter
would charge for potentially taking bonds onto its own balance
sheet and creating a secondary market in those bonds. In this
spirit, we would propose a takedown of $1.25/bond across all
maturities. We show a full breakdown of Underwriters’ Discount in
the adjacent tables based on a $35 million, 30-year transaction.

J.P. Morgan is committed to providing aggressive, market driven
fees and welcomes the opportunity to discuss the proposed fees
with the SCVWA. While we believe these takedowns are
consistent with current market, we do not want our fees alone to
preclude our participation in SCYWA'’s upcoming financing and,

Maturity Takedown
1-30 years $1.25
Underwriting Expenses & Total Underwriters' Discount
Underwriters' Discount $ Per Bond $ Total
Takedown $ 125 §  43,750.00
Expenses $ 103 § 35907.49
DALCOMP Fee 0.07 2,531.35
CUSIP Fee 0.03 1,026.50
DayLoan 0.02 549.64
DTC Fee 0.02 800.00
Underwriter's Counsel 0.71 25,000.00
CDIAC Fee 0.14 5,000.00
Travel & Out-of-Pocket 0.03 1,000.00
Total $ 228 $ 79,657.49

Note: Travel & Out-of-Pocket does not include travel to New York for pricing.

therefore, would be happy to discuss this proposal in order to derive a mutually acceptable level of compensation.

Include the cost of underwriter’s counsel as a fixed expense item, and which firm and contact person you propose to retain.
We propose utilizing Jones Hall as underwriter's counsel. Jones Hall offers extensive experience with California

Utility issuers. Our final selection of Underwriters’ Counsel is subject to clearance of any conflicts, and we would
also be happy to discuss any other qualified firms that SCYWA may want us to consider working with.
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A. Resumes

J.P. Morgan’s Core SCVWA Coverage Banking Team

SANTA CLARITA WATER AGENCY

John Houlberg
Executive Director

560 Mission Street, Floor 3
San Francisco, CA 94105

Telephone: 415.315.5958
john.houlberg@jpmorgan.com

Role: Day-to-day coverage

Resume: John joined JP Morgan in 2012 with over 8 years of experience at other
investment banks. John recently worked on the recent 2017 SFPUC Water Revenue
Refunding Bonds. Mr. Houlberg has over 11 years of municipal finance experience
serving major issuers on the west coast, including Los Angeles Unified School District,
Sound Transit, San Diego Unified School District, the Bay Area Toll Authority, Port of
Oakland, Port of Seattle, San Diego Association of Governments, San Diego County
Water Authority, East Bay Municipal Utility District, Metropolitan Water District of
Southern California, San Bernardino Association of Governments and Bay Area Rapid
Transit.

Will Frymann
Executive Director

560 Mission Street, Floor 3
San Francisco, CA 94105

Telephone: 415.315.3901
will.frymann@jpmorgan.com

Role: Day-to-day coverage

Resume: Will has spent more than 10 years working with municipal water, wastewater,
power and gas utility clients throughout the US and has focused particularly on
California. At J.P. Morgan, Will works as part of the firm’s Infrastructure Group and is
focused on structured financings, project finance and public private partnerships. Prior to
joining J.P. Morgan, Will was a lead financial advisor on over $15 billion in financings.
Will worked closely with the Contra Costa Water District, Los Angeles Department of
Water and Power, CPS Energy and numerous others. Will graduated from UCLA with a
BS in Cognitive Science and from UC Berkeley with an MBA.

Jack O’Connell
Analyst

560 Mission Street, Floor 03
San Francisco, CA 94105

Telephone: 415.315.8703

jack.oconnell@jpmorgan.com

Role: Transaction support and deal execution

Resume: Jack O’'Connell joined J.P. Morgan’s Public Finance Western Group in August
of 2017. He provides analytical coverage of many of J.P. Morgan’s Southern California
general municipal, public power, and water and wastewater clients. Leila holds a
Bachelor of Arts in Economics and Philosophy from Columbia.
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Long-Term Underwriting & Investor Marketing

Spencer Barton
Vice President

383 Madison Avenue, Floor 8
New York, NY 10179

Telephone: (212) 834-7155
spencer.barton@jpmorgan.com

Role: Long-Term Underwriting

Resume: Spencer Barton is a Vice President on the Public Finance Syndicate Desk where
she is responsible for pricing tax-exempt and taxable bond transactions for a wide array of
municipal issuers. Prior to joining the Syndicate desk, Spencer worked in the Public
Finance Debt Capital Markets Group, where she was responsible for conducting pricing
analysis for municipal issuers across all sectors, writing and distributing weekly market
updates to J.P. Morgan’s issuer clients, and liaising information among the various banking
teams and the Sales, Trading, and Syndicate desks. Spencer graduated from Georgetown
University with a major in Finance.

Marshall Kitain
Executive Director, Head of Credit
Analysis and Investor Marketing

383 Madison Avenue, Floor 8
New York, NY 10179

Telephone: 212.834.5673
marshall.r.kitain@jpmorgan.com

Role: Issuer credit and investor marketing

Resume: Marshall Kitain has twelve years of experience working in J.P. Morgan’s Public
Finance Group. In his role as Executive Director and Head of the Municipal Credit Analysis
and Investor Marketing team, Marshall develops marketing and credit strategies to best
position new issue transactions, leads J.P. Morgan’s municipal investor outreach efforts,
including working directly with buy-side credit analysts on primary and secondary market
opportunities, and runs the desk analyst and credit strategy function for J.P. Morgan’s
municipal secondary market trading team. A Smith’s Research municipal all-star, Marshall
has led marketing efforts for multiple Bond Buyer deal of the year winners, including the
2014 southeast winner for the Louisiana State Bond Commission and the 2014 southwest
winner for the Regional Transportation District of Colorado. In 2012, he led the fixed income
investor marketing for the Carlsbad Desalination Project, Project Finance Magazine’s "North
American Water Deal of the Year. Marshall graduated with highest honors from the
University of Pennsylvania with a B.A. in Economics and Political Science and holds a
M.B.A. from the Stern School of Business at New York University.
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Wells Fargo Securities
333 S. Grand Ave., 5th Floor

Los Angeles, CA 90071 ‘ané“é“g
November 12, 2018

Mr. Eric Campbell Mr. Robert Porr

Chief Financial and Administrative Officer Senior Vice President

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Fieldman Rolapp and Associates

27234 Bouquet Canyon Rd 19900 MacArthur Blvd., Suite 1100

Santa Clarita, CA 91350 Irvine, CA 92612

RE: Request for Proposals for Investment Banking/Underwriter Services

Dear Mr. Campbell and Mr. Porr,

On behalf of Wells Fargo Securities (“Wells Fargo Securities” or “WFS”), we are pleased to submit our proposal to provide
investment banking services to Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (“the Agency”). We are confident that given Wells Fargo’s
strong capital position, broad distribution capabilities, and most importantly our team’s longstanding relationship with the
Agency, we will serve as an invaluable partner in helping the Agency access the capital markets for the proposed refunding.

= Commitment to Santa Clarita Water Agency. Wells Fargo is proud to have a longstanding relationship with the Agency
providing underwriting, credit and treasury management services. Most recently, the WFS financing team served as the
sole underwriter on the Agency’s Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A. Wells Fargo also currently serves as a credit
provider to Agency through our provision of a $22.83mm 2008A Letter of Credit agreement for Castaic Lake Water
Agency that expires on August 30" 2019.

= Experience with California Water Agencies. Wells Fargo has extensive experience working with California water
agencies. Since 2015, we served as senior manager on over $3.1 billion of California water financings for some of
California’s largest wholesale and retail water agencies including the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power, Santa
Clara Valley Water District, Calleguas Municipal Water District, Water Replenishment District of Southern California
and Antelope Valley- East Kern Water Agency.

= Financial Strength and Stability. Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“WFBNA”) is widely regarded as one the strongest and most
financially stable banks in the world, with credit ratings of “Aa2/AA-/AA”. Wells Fargo & Company’s (“WFC”) market
capitalization of over $250 billion is the third largest among its North American peerst. WFBNA regularly utilizes its
balance sheet to support our clients in many ways, including a full range of operating and debt-related credit structures as
well as committing capital to support our underwriting of fixed rate transactions.

= Extensive Distribution Network. Wells Fargo provides both a national distribution network focused on institutional
investors, as well as a regional network geared towards retail buyers. Our retail distribution network is operated primarily
through Wells Fargo Advisors, LLC (“WFA™) and our team of approximately 1,049 California based brokers will provide
direct access to retail investors within the Agencies service area. WFS also has the ability to reach middle market investors,
particularly for taxable bond financings. WFS has approximately 137 middle-market sales professionals in 16 regional
sales offices, who have relationships with more than 6,400 middle-markets investors.

We look forward to the opportunity to serve the Agency on the potential transaction. We believe we have the right team to
deliver the best overall quality and execute the financing to achieve the lowest costs available in market. If you have any
questions, please don’t hesitate to reach out to any of the following team members below. Thank you again for the opportunity.

Sincerely,
. ’ \_j
Michael Engelbrecht Jon Hansen
Managing Director and Co-Head of Utilities Senior Vice President
Wells Fargo Securities Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
P: (213) 253-7219 P: (213) 253-7235
michael.j.engelbrecht@wellsfargo.com jon.r.hansen@wellsfargo.com

1 Source: Bloomberg as of November 9, 2018
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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR UNDERWRITING SERVICES
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Page

1. Questions.

1. Describe your firm’s retail and institutional sales capability related to tax-exempt financings. Please provide 1
an example of your firm’s pricing of an AA-rated California water transaction for a par amount in a range
of $30 — $45 million completed within the last six months.

2. Discuss your ideas on various call features that may be recommendable for the Agency’s proposed 3
transaction.

3. In light of the current conditions in the municipal marketplace, discuss your structuring and overall 3
marketing approach for the 2019 Bonds. Provide your firm’s forecast of tax-exempt interest rates for the
remainder of the year and through June 2019.

I11. Qualifications.

1. List or summarize your firm’s experience as senior manager for California-based water enterprise 7
revenue bonds in the last 3 years.

2. Provide a proposed project team, including your underwriter, including resumes and roles of each team 8
member. Provide each team member’s experience over the last 3 years with: California water enterprise
revenue bonds, revenue certificates of participation (senior managed transactions only)

V. Fees.

Provide a detail of your proposed fees and expenses for the financing, and any assumptions used in deriving this 8

fee structure. Include takedowns broken out by maturity. For consistency of comparison, please assume a par
amount of $35 million with a 30 year term.

Include the cost of underwriter’s counsel as a fixed expense item, and which firm and contact person you propose
to retain.

Appendix
California-based Water Enterprise Revenue Bonds Experience |
Finance Team Resumes |

Important Information & Disclaimer

This document and any other materials accompanying this document (collectively, the “Materials”) are provided for general informational purposes only. By
accepting any Materials, the recipient acknowledges and agrees to the matters set forth below.

Wells Fargo Securities (“WFS”) is the trade name for certain securities-related capital markets and investment banking services of Wells Fargo &
Company (“WFC”) and its subsidiaries, including Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., acting through its Municipal Products Group. Municipal derivatives
services are provided by Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., a swap dealer registered with the CFTC and member of the NFA. Commercial banking products
and services are provided by Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. Investment banking and capital markets products and services provided by Wells Fargo
Securities, are not a condition to any banking product or service.

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“WFBNA”), as potential derivatives provider, and Wells Fargo Securities , as potential underwriter or placement agent,
(collectively, for purposes hereof, “we”, or “Wells Fargo”) are providing the information contained in the Materials for discussion purposes only in
anticipation of, or in connection with, engaging in arm’s length commercial transactions with you in which Wells Fargo would be acting solely as a
principal or agent, as applicable, and not as a municipal advisor, financial advisor or fiduciary to you or any other person or entity regardless of
whether we, or an affiliate has or is currently acting as such on a separate transaction (the use of the term “agent” does not imply any fiduciary
relationship).

These Materials are being provided to you for the purpose of working with you as an underwriter or placement agent (collectively, “underwriter”) and/or
derivatives provider on the transaction(s) described in the Materials. As part of its services as underwriter, WES may provide information concerning the structure,
timing, terms, and other similar matters conc